
INFORMATIONAL CORRESPONDENCE - AUGUST 14, 2017 

1. Building Department - Building Statistics - July 2017 
2. Building Department - Building Permits - Yearly Statistics 
3. E. Bower - letter received July 24, 2017 - Dog park at Klahani Park 
4. D. MacQuarrie - email dated July 18, 2017 - Hearing Loss is a disability to be included in 

BC Disability Act 
5. M. Testart - email dated July 20, 2017 - Cell towers 
6. B. Cook -letter dated August 1, 2017 - Debt Strategy and Capital Plan 
7. A. Munholland, President, Seniors Resource Centre - letter dated June 27, 2017 - Fletcher 

Park structure for shade and seating 
8. P. Thurston, Executive Director, Shuswap Family Resource & Referral Centre - letter 

dated August 4, 2017 - Proposal for a Skateboard Competition as a fundraiser 
9. M. Krause, UBCM President -letter dated July 18, 2017 - Gas Tax Agreement Community 

Works Fund Payment 
10. J. Horgan, Premier - letter dated August 1, 2017 - UBCM Convention meetings with 

Premier and Cabinet Ministers 
11. S. Robinson, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing - letter dated August 2, 2017 -

UBCM Convention Minister's Meeting 
12. Shuswap Watershed Council- Water Quality Summary Report for 2016 
13. P. Gall, Communications officer, Interior Health - email dated August 2, 2017 - High 

Temperatures expected across interior Health 
14. S. Vanderlee, Administrative Services Coordinator, Built Green Canada - email dated 

August 3, 2017 - Built Green Canada: Reaching Out 
15. P. Heintzman, Mayor, District of Squamish - letter dated July 19, 2017 - Support for 

Resolutions 
16. L. Chore, Chief Executive Officer, Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust - Fiscal 

2017 Annual Report 
17. J. Heer - email dated August 1, 2017 - Paid Parking Transaction Issue 
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CITY OF SALMON ARM 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT REPORT 

JULY 2017 

LAST YEAR (2016) CURRENT YEAR (2017) 

8 
CURRENT MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE CURRENT MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE 

NO. VALUE 

New Single Family Dwellings 9 2,500,000 

Misc. Additions etc. to SFD's 13 334,995 

New ModularslMH's (Factory Built) 1 86,000 

Misc. Additions etc. to Modulars/MH's - -
MFD's (j/' Units) - -
Misc. Additions etc. to MFD's - -
New Commercial - -

Misc. Additions etc. to Commercial - -
New Industrial - -
Misc. Additions etc. to Industrial - -
New Institutional - -
Misc. Additions etc. to Institutional 3 60,000 

Signs 3 4,665 

Swimming Pools, Pool Buildings - -
Demolttions - -
Temporary Trailers, A & B Permits - -
Misc. Special Inspections, etc. 2 -
TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED ~ 31 2,985,660 

-

MFD's - Apartment, Row, Duplex, strata (# of dwelling unils created) 

Farm building values not included 

NO. VALUE 

39 11,531,990 

67 1,892,920 

15 1,770,825 

8 85,600 

1 (3) 550,000 

1 50,000 

1 1,100,000 

9 233,950 

2 380,000 

- -
2 "1,200,000 

7 209,000 

25 73,839 

6 187,000 

17 -
4 -
19 -

223 19,265,124 

NO. VALUE NO. VALUE 

17 5,128,000 73 22,216,895 

20 832,600 78 3,230,625 

2 369,000 14 2,425,000 

3 39,315 11 142,335 

- - 1 (4) 1,049,000 

- - 1 2,000 

1 140,000 2 540,000 

3 370,000 15 857,900 

- - 2 150,433 

- - 2 14,500 

- - - -
- - 3 22,000 

4 5,752 25 57,555 

2 85,000 2 85,000 

4 - 11 -
- - 2 -
1 - 16 -

57 6,969,667 258 30,793,243 



BUILDING PERMITS - YEARLY , 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC 
2001 585,500 11,938,550 12,285,250 12,842,790 13,534,790 14,712,550 16,330,650 17,717,625 19,031,075 19,895,255 21,318,855 21,458,195 

2002 585,500 1,952,500 3,340,850 3,821,240 5,455,840 6,411,690 8,844,690 10,932,510 15,780,890 16,705,600 17,738,200 17,923,700 

2003 130,110 920,780 2,974,020 4,486,120 5,993,320 13,294,120 15,555,250 17,937,005 20,318,920 22,000,340 24,005,740 24,782,360 

2004 430,700 1,506,500 5,903,780 8,379,104 10,122,768 12,086,319 14,779,343 21,598,763 30,371,023 33,614,173 34,957,458 35,881,343 

2005 1,072,000 2,269,650 4,344,750 6,806,152 12,110,482 28,031,457 29,985,585 34,743,845 37,600,445 42,915,856 45,525,611 47,576,746 

2006 815,550 3,224,466 8,012,449 11,501,929 16,084,809 20,066,533 23,714,194 26,370,890 36,479,806 37,278,358 42,332,995 43,077,170 
2007 1,531,087 3,901,669 16,148,674 22,413,118 27,232,134 32,401,472 35,657,297 42,829,750 51,945,799 55,703,387 65,885,802 66,289,555 

2008 1,797,604 4,203,429 12,947,058 27,647,379 33,857,533 36,582,025 39,759,375 42,395,454 45,412,474 50,699,301 53,383,541 53,522,880 

2009 409,369 854,839 2,039,460 5,207,311 6,763,615 7,800,085 9,677,455 11,579,746 18,882,737 20,713,554 23,523,664 24,337,664 

2010 1,518,563 2,708,062 5,931,546 10,081,816 12,260,236 13,526,546 16,597,121 18,790,511 19,848,804 21,174,632 22,953,692 27,249,702 
2011 568,645 2,003,976 5,063,837 7,449,773 9,471,416 11,761,850 12,794,028 14,222,970 18,194,801 19,682,061 30,563,013 31,934,415 
2012 2,189,660 3,128,562 4,794,040 6,337,260 10,000,544 12,120,246 17,883,185 24,375,078 26,118,787 26,493,820 28,130,500 28,666,430 
2013 881,740 1,440,110 13,907,060 15,814,195 17,433,454 20,194,778 23,204,628 24,180,485 26,567,302 29,195,224 30,890,086 31,231,349 
2014 665,304 2,806,404 8,075,941 20,789,869 27,574,834 29,877,686 33,456,523 41,971,923 42,784,769 44,804,191 46,460,471 47,707,993 
2015 1,172,285 1,853,539 3,894,754 6,750,389 8,575,425 18,388,180 20,475,407 26,442,225 29,143,303 31,248,595 35,417,465 37,368,595 
2016 1,268,865 2,298,280 4,987,625 8,904,610 12,253,660 16,279,454 19,265,124 23,811,029 29,823,014 36,064,949 40,154,959 41,418,659 
2017 1,183,280 2,841,725 7,219,495 11,761,657 18,136,656 23,823,576 30,793,243 

8 
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3381-40th St. N.E. 
Salmon Arm, B.C. 

Dear Nancy Cooper and Councilors, 

This past week I stopped at Klahani Park to see the new Dog park that the city has 
created. The fencing is great, but I was very disappointed in several other very 
important things: 

1. The area of the dog park is small especially if there are any of the larger dogs 
there to play ball etc. in reality 2 areas are needed: one for large dogs and 
one for small dogs 

2. The complete area is all dirt and rock with a few weeds growing. When it 
rains this will be a mud hole. Dogs need grass- it is clean, cool and easy on 
their paws, while dirt and rock is very hot, dirty and not inviting 

3 .. There is absolutely NO shade for the dogs to get out of the sun, or to 
getaway from another dog if necessary 

4. There are no benches or shade for people to use either while watching 
their dogs. They would have to sit in the dirt and sun, or go to their car which 
would mean they aren't watching their dog, or close by incase a problem 
comes up. 

The park has great protential, but needs atleast the above issues dealt with before 
people are going to want to use it. As it is now it is a waste of taxpayers money. We 
need a good dog park not a dirt park. I hope you will consider these suggestions, 
and others as there are lots of dogs in Salmon Arm who need a nice safe dog 
friendly place to play in . 

Than~y-o., 

/1---
.. 

," 

E Bower 



Sent: July-18-17 7:28 PM 
To: Premier@gov.bc.ca 
Cc: Nancy Cooper; GREG KYLLO; Sylvia Genn Lindgren 
Subject: Hearing loss is a disability to be included in B.C. Disability Act 

The )-1011. John Horgan, premier of Be 
Parl iament buildings, Victor ia BC 

Dear Sir: 
Congratulations on being Ollr 36th pre miere of Be . I along with many other res idents or BC, arc looking forward to 

legislati on which will bring us into the 21 st·ccntury. Namely, includc"Loss of hearing" as a di sabi tily in the Disab ility Act of 
I3C. 

In 1999 the world COllrt agreed with the European Union, that loss of hearing is a di sability [have a hl'a ril1 g 
luss greater than 25 dll] in 2010 the Parliament of Brita in agreed, and included " loss of hearing, " in their Disabil ity Act. Later 
they well t all to include it in their l-I ea lth·Carc system. 

We seniors now being the majority group in all of Canada, as we ll as the ones with the grcatest loss ofhcaring, 
consider thi s as a justice issue. More and morc of li S are inadvcrtently being excluded from full pa rt ic ipat ion in dcmocracy. If 
wc can't hcar we bccomc non·persons. 

To add insult to injury the situat ion can be rcmedied at a minimal cost. cspeciall y if it was included in our hcalth·carc 
systcm. Salmon Arm Council has rccently installed an Auris Loop in their counci l chambers at less than the cost of one hearing 
aid. Now all of us seniors can hear, and participate, in what is going on. 

What I am asking is, would you please, "includc loss of hcari ng," as a disability in thc Disability Act of De. ? As a 
sign of good faith, I would be vcry pleased if yoll were to incl uded, "Loss of hearing as a disab ility," in your first throne speech. 
THANKS 
Peace, Dan MacQuarrie 

ps: I would like you to know that we at :macguarrieinstitute.ca , are building Canada a 2nd time, 
using circle thinking. Check out "Dan's vision," building a fair country with a level playing 
field, especially for all those that have difficulty hearing. 

Peace, 
Dan 



-------- Original message --------
From: Mike Testart <mike.testart@gmail.com> 
Date: 07-20-20172:33 PM (GMT-08:00) 
To: Nancy Cooper <ncoooer@salmonarm.ca> 
Subject: Cell Towers 

Excerpt from a letter sent to me by Sharon Noble: 
Shaw I Freedom Mobile have proposed erecting several new cell towers in 
and around Sooke, many very near homes and businesses. Sooke Mayor and 
Council has rejected the application , after receiving petitions and appeals from 
residents , saying that the current cell reception is good and asking for any 
new transmitters to be co-located on existing towers that are distant from 
homes. But if the landowner wants to lease, putting his neighbours' health at 
risk in exchange for money, this cannot be stopped. Any such landowner 
needs to know that he and he alone will be held liable when people sue after 
they become ill. No insurer will cover him and the cell company is indemnified 
by the government. The landowner could lose everything in exchange for 
short-term gain. 

Mike Testart 
(250)832-6772 fax 832-6775 
cell(250)515-6215 
Box 278 
6421 70th St NE 
Canoe BC VOE 1KO 



August 1, 2017 

To: City of Salmon Arm 

From: Bruce Cook 

Re: Debt Strategy and Capital Plan - Update 

At the regular monthly meeting ofthe Shuswap Recreation Society (SRS) of July 25/17, a 
briefing took place on proposed capital projects within the City's Strategic plan. The Mayor and 
CAO encouraged those present to express their views on the proposed projects and how they 
perceive the initiatives should be prioritized. The following comments are a response to that 
invitation. 

It might be appropriate to disclose that I have been a member of the SRS board for six years 
and undoubtedly carry some bias on the importance of having excellent recreation facilities and 
programs within our community. I have lived in Salmon Arm for over twenty-seven years and 
have tried to stay engaged in the community and how it's governed and managed. 

In reviewing the document of June 21/17 prepared for Council by CAO Bannister and CFO 
Dalziel, eight major capital projects are identified. I've ranked my choices of relative 
importance ofthe initiatives with comments where applicable: 

1. Ross Street Underpass. This initiative has been widely debated within the community 
for a number of years. While I have a conflicting view on how the City waterfront could 
have developed, the reality is that we are well down the road with existing 
developments. The rail traffic corridor through the community presents a major hurdle 
to plan around, and it would appear a given that rail traffic will only increase in coming 
years. There is sufficient population living on the north side of the rail conduit that need 
uninterrupted access at all times; particularly for emergency services. The underpass 
will also service as a stimulus for further development on the foreshore. 

2. Downtown Parkade. Some preservation ofthe downtown core is critical to prevent it 
from becoming a less than desirable part of town. This initiative will serve to bolster 
and enhance a vibrant commercial/retail/housing downtown. 

3. Shoemaker Hill/Auto Road extension. The SE quadrant of the community would be 
served through enhanced flow to the downtown core and shopping centre areas. 

4. 20th Ave/20th St NE Realignment. This initiative would create a critical north/south 
arterial route and could help relieve traffic along Lakeshore between 20th Ave and 
Marine Park Drive. 

(0 



5. SASCU Recreation Centre Pool. The eventual need for a replacement/upgrade of the 
pool is a given and hopefully will be become a major priority in the coming years. The 
cost and scope ofthis project will be substantial and will need considerable planning. 
While not wanting to further complicate the need for a pool, I would suggest the vision 
for a community performing arts facility could tandem with the existing community land 
base around the arenas, pool & community centre. The recent acquisition of the 
Mino's/Orchard House property will offer numerous alternatives to meet the long term 
recreational needs of the community and region. 

6. Track & Field facility. Construction of an asset of this nature will enhance the 
City/region's ability to attract regional or provincial games events and will be an 
important training facility for future athletes. 

7. West Bay Connector Trail. 

8. Public Works Yard Relocation. The current location allows reasonably central access to 
the community at large. I would suggest it is a low priority at this time. 

Summary 

In the world of commerce, and I expect in government, one of the major challenges is 
anticipating future changes that might take place in a marketplace. We are living at a time of 
constant innovation and fast change that cater to the wants and needs of the public. 
Corporations and governments react to changes to avoid losing customers. In the case of 
governments, I expect it is more a fear of losing favour with the public. When planning, leaders 
would love to have a crystal ball that would provide a safe degree of accuracy prior to making a 
major capital commitment that will need to stand for an extended period. 

At the risk of stating the obvious, it is critical to put together a set of assumptions before 
making a commitment to these long term assumptions. I've developed a few with a weighting 
toward recreation facilities: 

1. The regional population has been increasing in age for some years. This trend will 
presumably taper off or reverse at some future state. Regardless of these changes, the 
facilities for recreation are typically used by a wide range of ages. 

2. Quality recreation facilities and programs strongly influence people seeking to relocate 
to a community. 

3. Developing facilities or assets that are unique can help to differentiate a community 
when competing for specific events. 



• • • • • : ..... 
SENIORS 
RESOURCe OIPIF8PP"FPI'CEJVTRE 

June 27, 2017 

Mayor Nancy Cooper 
City of Salmon Arm 
500-2"d Ave, SE 
Salmon Arm, B,C. 

Dear Mayor Cooper: 

320 A - 2nd AVENUE N.E., SALMON ARM , B.C. V1 E 1 H1 
PHONE (250) 832-7000' FAX (250) 833-0550 

for many years the seniors in our Day Away program have enjoyed outdoor activities, picnics and 
watching the children play in Fletcher Park, Unfortunately we can no longer include that in our plans, 

last year the lovely old tree and the seating area on the east side of the building, which houses the 
Seniors Resource Centre, were completed removed by City workers and replaced with 2 park benches, 
side-by-slde, on a large concrete slab out in the full sun, There is no shade, 

We respectfully request that somehow the Parks Department rectify this situation by erecting some 
form of permanent structure that will once again make for a pleasant, comfortable, shady area; not 
only for seniors, but for mothers with young children, to sit and enjoy the activities going on in the park, 

We trust that a satisfactory solution can be found for this problem. 

Sincerely, 

A. Munholland 
President 
Seniors Resource Centre 

---------------?~7.y~-.-/ 
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fa mil riresource Y & REFERRA L CE NTRE 

August 4, 2017 

Dear Mayor Cooper and Sa lmon Arm City Council; 

RE: Proposal for a Skateboard Competition as a fundraiser 

Email: sfrrcinfo@familvresource.bc.ca 

Web: farnilvresou(ce. bc.ca 
Phone: 250 -832-2170 Fax: 250-833-0137 

I am writing on behalf of the Shuswap Family Resource and Referral Centre. We are requesting an opportunity to host Salmon 

Arm's first Skateboard competition to raise funds for youth programs in our community. Some of, the programming will include 

counselling, mentoring and youth focused programs such as recreation and cooking. 

The hopeful date for the one day competition is August 26, 2017. 

I have met with Rosa, from Rosa's Taco Stand and she will be open to provide food on August 26, 2017. No other food will be 

sold on the site. 

We will have water and a snack tent for the Skater's, judges and vo lunteers. We will also have a first aid tent and people with 

their first aid on site all day. I am hoping the City will supply the power for the sound system for the event as the competition 

will require a sound system which we will supply. 

I have spoken to SFRRCs Insurance agency and they will have the documents prepared for City Council once the competition has 

been approved. Each Skater wil l register at SFRRC and the registration form will include a waiver. We have not determined a fee 

for the Skater's but it will not exceed, ten dollars, ($10.00) and to insure everyone can participate in the competition the fee will 

be waived if necessary. 

We will have a spectator section which will be clearly identified keeping the Skateboard area safe for the Skater's and the 

spectators. 

I hope this meets all the City's requirements so we are able to host and promote a safe fun filled event which will bring a positive 

light to the athletes who Skateboard and funding for services for our youth in our community. 

Sincerely, 

Patricia Thurston 

Executive Director 

w: familyresource.bc.ca e: sfrrci nfo@familyreso urce.bc.ca p: 250-832-2 170 f: 250-833-0137 



July 18, 2017 

Mayor Nancy Cooper 
City of Salmon Arm 
Box 40 
Salmon Arm, BC V1 E 4N2 

Dear Mayor Nancy Cooper: 

RE: GAS TAX AGREEMENT COMMUNITY WORKS FUND PAYMENT 

I am pleased to advise that UBCM is in the process of distributing the first of two 
Community Works Fund (CWF) payments for fiscal 2017/2018. An electronic 
transfer of $399,725.58 is expected to occur within the next 30 days. These 
payments are made in accordance with the payment schedule set out in your CWF 
Agreement with UBCM (see section 4 of your Agreement). 

CWF is made available to eligible local governments by the Government of Canada 
pursuant to the Administrative Agreement on the Federal Gas Tax Fund in British 
Columbia. Funding under the program may be directed to local priorities that fall 
within one of the eligible project categories. 

Also included with the 2017/18 funding payment is a one-time federal legacy 
infrastructure funding payment, which was committed by the Government of Canada 
in Budget 2016. 

Further details regarding use of CWF and project eligibility are outlined in your CWF 
Agreement and details on the Renewed Gas Tax Agreement can be found on our 
website at www.ubcm.ca . 

For further information, please contact Gas Tax Program Services bye-mail at 
gastax@ubcm.ca or by phone at 250-356-5134. 

Sincerely, 

Councillor Murry Krause 
UBCM President 

Pc: Monica Dalziel, Chief Financial Officer 

60-10551 Slletlbncige Way. Richmond. Be V6X ?Wg 525 Government Street VictOria. Be V8V DA8 
t G0-1?708?2G I f 601\(>709 116 I ubcrnca t 2503565133 1 f 2503565119 I ulJcrnca 



August 1,2017 

Deal' Mayors and Regional District Chairs: 

As we prepare for the 2017 Union of British Columbia Municipalities (UBCM) Convention in 
Vancouver, September 25 to 29, I wanted to let you know my caucus is looking forward to 
meeting you and working with you to build strong and vibrant communities throughout B.C. 

This year's theme, Roots to Results, reminds us that we all have a role to play in finding 
solutions to the problems our communities face. UBCM gives us the opportunity to listen to one 
another, share ideas, and work together to build a better future for people and communities. 

If you would like to request a meeting with me 01' a Cabinet Minister during this year's 
convention, please register online at https:IIUBCMreg.gov.bc.ca. This site will go live on 
August 3,d, 2017. Please note the invitation code is MeetingRequest20 17 and it is case sensitive. 
If you have any questions, please contact Marlene Behrens, marlene.behrens@gov.bc.ca. 

I look forward to meeting with many of you, and hearing about yoUI' communities and, exploring 
ways we can partner together to address common issues. 

Sincerely, 

JfL~ 
John Horgan 
Premier 

Office of the 
Premier 

Web Site: 
www.gov.bc.ca 

Mailing Address: 
PO Box 9041 Stn Prov Govt 
Victoria Be V8\V' 9E I 

Location: 
Parliament Buildings 
Vic to ria 



AUG 02 2017 

Dear Mayors and Regional District Chairs: 

BRI ISH 
COLUMBIA 

It is my pleasure to write to you regarding scheduling appointments for the upcoming annual 
UBCM Convention taking place in Vancouver, September 25 to 29, 2017. 

As the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, I am pleased to provide you with Information 
regarding the process for requesting a meeting with me, as well as with provincial government, agency, 
commission and corporation staff. Additionally, you will receive a letter from Honourable John Horgan, 
Premier, containing Information about the online process for requesting a meeting with Premier Horgan 
and other Cabinet Ministers. 

If you would like to meet with me at the Convention, please complete the online form at: 
Minister's Meet ing and submit it to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing before 
August 18, 2017. Meeting arrangements will be confirmed by early September. I will do my best to 
accommodate as many meeting requests as possible. In the event I am unable to meet with you, 
arrangements may be made for a meeting post-Convention. 

To get the most out of your delegation's meeting, it would be helpful if once you make your meeting 
request, you could provide a one to one and one-half page summary of the matter(s) to be discussed 
(a template will be provided online). By providing this information in advance of the meeting, I will have 
a better understanding of your delegation's interests and it will allow for discussions that are more 
productive. 

Ministry staff will email the provincial appointment book. This lists all government, agency, commission 
and corporation staff expected to be available to meet with delegates at the Convention, as well as 
details on how to request a meeting online. 

As the Minister responsible for local government, I appreciate the important work local governments do 
for the benefit of British Columbians. I look forward to meeting with many of you, hearing about your 
communities, and exploring ways we can partner together to address common issues. 

Sincerely, 

~C~ 
Selina Robinson 
Minister 

pc: Honourable John Horgan, Premier 
Murry Krause, President, Union of British Columbia Municipalities 

Ministry of Municipal Affairs 
and Housing 

Office of the Minister Mailing Address: 
PO Box 9056 Stn Pray Govt 
Victoria Be vaw 9E2 
Phone: 250 387-2283 
Fax: 250 387-4312 

location: 
Parliament Buildings 
Victoria BC 



SHUSWAP 
w ater shed co uncil 

WATER QUALITY SUMMARY REPORT FOR 2016 
This is the first annual report on water quality 
from the Shuswap Watershed Council. 

Did you know there are over 500 water quality samples collected in the Shuswap 
watershed each year? Samples are collected from lakes and rivers, in the shallows and 
the deep, at parks and beaches, and near water in-takes and effluent out-falls. Water 
samples are collected by over a dozen organizations, and for different reasons - such 
as for monitoring ecosystem health, ensuring public health and safety, for research or 
stewardship purposes, a nd more. 

The Shuswap Watershed Council (SWC) was established in 2014 as a watershed-based partnership 
that enhances water quality and safe recreation in the Shuswap. There are 17 SWC members 
that represent three regional districts, two municipalities, the Secwepemc Nation, two provincial 
government agencies, and Shuswap communities. The SWC is a collaborative, non-regulatory 
group. It works alongside organizations that have regulatory roles in managing the Shuswap 
watershed, complimenting their work and carefully avoiding duplication. 

Enhanced water quality that supports human and ecosystem health 
~ the local economy in the Shuswap watershed 

\ ~ 

Featuring water quality 
monitoring results for: 

Shuswap Lake 

Mara Lake 

Mabel Lake 

Sugar Lake 

Shuswap River 

Salmon River 

GardomLake 

White Lake 

Adams Lake 

Popular swimming 
beaches 



Throughout the pages of this summary, you'lI .see 
contributions from Grade 11 and 12 students at 
Salmon Arm Secondary School. They've shared 
some of what they've learned about the Shuswap 
watershed in their Earth Science class. 



SHUSWAP, MARA, MABEL, ADAMS, GARDOM AND 
WHITE LAKES RESULTS 
Be Ministry of Environment monitors water quality at these lakes twice per year, in the spring and fall. 

Members of the Be Lake Stewardship Society and citizen scientists also help with monitoring and contribute 

water quality data. Here is a snapshot of water quality monitoring results* for 2016. 

SHUSWAP AND MARA LAKES 

Shuswap and Mara lakes 2016: total Phosphorus 
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Shuswap and Mara Lakes 2016: reactive 
Phosphate ._. 
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"A watershed is an area that drains into 
a common body of water at the lowest 
point. The water travels downhill starting 
from the highest point. If pollution is 
introduced upstream, it will travel and 
affect downstream areas." 

• Spr ing 

• Fa ll 

_ Spring 

- Fall 

-Student, Grade 11-12 Earth Science class, 
Salmon Arm Secondary School. 

.. For surface water only (not deep samples) 

Shuswap and Mara lakes 2016: total Nitrogen 
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Shuswap and Mara lakes 2016: Secchi Disk depth 
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MABEL LAKE 

Mabel Lake at Tsuius Cr 2016: select wate r qua lity 
parameters 

0."'" ,-------------

0.0'" +-1-----------
II Chl a 

~ 0.002 tl---- -;-----. II Reactive P 

0.001 +---=cc .ol Tota l P 

01 r==W ' 1S' 
Spring Fall 

Mabel la ke at Tsuius Cr 2016: total Nitrogen 

0.1 4 ~----------------

0.12 I t ./Gill 

0.1 t--{< 

~ 0.08 

E 0.06 

0.'" 

0.02 

o 
Spring 

II Tota l N 

Fall 

Mabel Lake at Tsuius Cr 2016: Secch i Disk depth 
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Mabel Lake South 2016: select water qua lity 
parameters 
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SUGAR LAKE 

Sugar lake 2016: select water qua lity parameters 
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ADAMS LAKE 

Adams Lake 2016: select water qua lity parameters 
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Adams lake 2016: select water quality parameters 
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Gardom La ke 2016: select water quality 
parameters 
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White Lake 2016: select water quality 
parameters 
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SHUSWAP RIVER RESULTS 
Shuswap River 2016: total Phosphorus 
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Shuswap River 2016: E. coli 

60 

~ . 
E so 
o 

~ 40 +-------- --------
§ 30 •• 

~ 20 • 
~ . 
~ 10 . • • • ••• • O ~~~_--~~~_~ 

»'1;'" ';t..~ .~~\ ~'I;.J.. ».;;,~ ,~.;;,~ ~«:,~ ,*0'" 'iJ«:,1.. 
~i''; ~'? o~ .... 'Q ..,t:i ~ ~'t; ~"o; v 

Date 

• Shuswap River at 
Rosemond Lake Road 

WOULD YOU LIKE TO BE ABLE TO 
ACCESS WATER QUALITY DATA IN 
NEAR REAL-TIME? YOU CAN! 

Much of the data for lakes and rivers is entered 

into the provincial Environmental Monitoring 

System (EMS). which is accessible to the public. 

A few steps are required, and the SWC has 
created a user-guide to make it easier. 

Find it on our website. 



SALMON RIVER RESULTS 
Salmon River 2016: total Phosphorus 

Salmon River 2016: t urbidity 
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SWIMMING 
BEACHES 
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Sa lmon River 2016: E. coli 
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Interior Health Authority is the 

regulatory agency that oversees water 

quality monitoring at popular swimming 
beaches in the Shuswap. Water samples 

are tested throughout the summer 
months for E. coli, a type of bacteria t hat 
is an indicator of water contamination. 

Here are the results from the beach 

sampling program in 2016. 
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MAKING SENSE 
OFTHEDATA 
The Shuswap watershed is a complex ecosystem. 
Water quality monitoring results vary in different 

regions of the watershed and different times of year, as 
shown on the previous pages. 

Generally, the lower receiving areas of the watershed 
such as Mara Lake and Salmon Arm Bay have higher 

concentrations of nutrients than elsewhere in the 
watershed. This is related to inflows from the Shuswap 

River and Salmon River, and to a lesser extent Canoe 
Creek, White Creek, and Tappen Creek. In addition, 

concentrations of nutrients such as phosphorus as 
well as chlorophyll a are higher in the warmer growing 

season (summer and fall) than in the cooler seasons 
(winter and spring). Even so, much of the phosphorus 
measurements for Shuswap and Mara Lake are 
considered low except for Salmon Arm Bay. The upper 
areas of the watershed such as Mabel Lake, Sugar 
Lake, and Adams Lake have very low measurements of 
phosphorus and chlorophyll a. 

The Shuswap and Salmon River monitoring results 
vary throughout the year. In addition to surrounding 

land uses, weather events impact river water quality. 
The Shuswap River charts on p. 6, for example, 
illustrate how late winter melt, spring freshet, and fall 

rains affect water quality. 

HELP KEEP THE SHUSWAP CLEAN 
There are a lot of things that can be done to help maintain and improve water quality. 

As a resident or visitor to the Shuswap, here are some priorities for individual action: 

Make sure you know where your wastewater goes. Is your household on a septic system, or 
connected to sewer? If it's septic, you're responsible for keeping it in good repair. The Septic Smart 

Homeowner's Guide is a good place to start: csrd.bc.ca/septicsmart/homeowners-guide 

Properly dispose of unused medications - return them to a pharmacy 

Pledge not to flush personal care products such as floss, swabs and wipes 

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 
The SWC wishes to thank the members of the Shuswap Water Quality Monitoring Group for their 

contributions to this summary. Thanks also to Dave Ramsay and his students at Salmon Arm Secondary 
School for sharing some of their ideas and classwork with us. 

WHAT DO YOU THINK? 
This is the first annual water quality summary from the Shuswap Watershed Council. We'd liketo know, 
what did you think? What else would you like to see in subsequent years summaries? Please contact 
the SWC, care of the Fraser Basin Council in Kamloops: evieira@fraserbasin.bc.ca 1250314-9660 



From: IHA Communications [mailto:IHACommunications@interiorhea lth .ca] 
Sent: August-02-17 2:12 PM 
To: _ Media All (Restricted) 
Subject: PSA: High temperatures expected across Interior Health 

• • • y ) I nterioL~,:,a.!l~ 
PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENT 

For Immediate Release I August 2, 2017 

High temperatures expected across Interior Health 

Temperatures across British Columbia are expected to hit annual highs this week and next. Too much 
heat can be harmful to your health and can lead to weakness, disorientation and exhaustion. In severe 
cases, it can also lead to heat stroke, also known as sunstroke. Heat stroke is a life-threatening medical 
emergency. Here are some signs to watch for and suggested tips to keep you safe and healthy. 

Who is most at risk? 

• Infants and children up to four years of age who rely on adults to make sure their environments 
are comfortable and provide them with enough flu ids. 

• People 65 years of age or older who may not compensate for heat stress efficiently and are less 
likely to sense and respond to high temperatures. 

• Healthy individuals who do a lot of physical activity or work in a hot environment. 
• Those with heart problems and breathing difficulties. 

Symptoms to watch for? 
The symptoms of heat-related illness can range from mild to severe. They include: 

• pale, cool, moist skin; 
• heavy sweating; 
• muscle cramps; 

• rash; 
• swelling, especially hands and feet; 
• fatigue and weakness; 
• dizziness and/or fainting; 

• headache; 
• nausea and/or vomiting; 

• fever, particularly a core body temperature of 40° C (104° F) or more; 
• confusion and decreased mental alertness; 
• hallucinations; 
• red, hot, dry skin (in the late stages of heat stroke); 

• seizures; and 
• unconsciousness!coma 

What should a person do if they are experiencing symptoms? 
When recognized early, most mild heat-related illnesses can be treated at home. Home treatment for 
mild heat exhaustion may include: 

• moving to a cooler environment; 



• drinking plenty of cool, non-alcoholic fluids; 

• resting; 
• taking a cool shower or bath; and 
• wearing lightweight clothing 

If your symptoms last longer than one hour, change, worsen or cause you concern, contact a health-care 
provider. 

What steps can people take to avoid heat related illness? 
• Never leave children alone in a parked car. Temperatures can rise to 52° C (125° F) within 20 

minutes inside a vehicle when the outside temperature is 34° C (93° F). Leaving the car 
windows slightly open will not keep the inside of the vehicle at a safe temperature. 

• Drink plenty of fluids. Drink extra water even before you feel thirsty. 
• Keep cool - stay indoors in air-conditioned buildings or take a cool bath or shower. At 

temperatures above 30° C (86°F), fans alone may not be able to prevent heat-related illness. 
Remember, sunscreen will protect against the sun's ultraviolet (UV) rays but not from the heat. 

• Plan your outdoor activity before I I a.m. or after 4 p.m., when the sun's Ultra Violet Radiation 
(UVR) is the weakest. 

• Avoid tiring work or exercise in hot, humid environments. If you must work or exercise, drink 2 
to 4 glasses of non-alcoholic fluids each hour. Rest breaks are important and should be taken in 
the shade. 

• Avoid sunburn - use sunscreen with SPF 30 or higher. 
• Wear lightweight, light-coloured, loose-fitting clothing and a wide brimmed hat, or use an 

umbrella for shade. 
• Regularly check older adults, children and others for signs of heat-related illness and make sure 

they are keeping cool and drinking plenty of fluids. Check on those who are unable to leave 
their homes, and people with emotional or mental health concerns whose judgment may be 
impaired. 

For more information on heat-related illness, visit the HealthLinkBC website or dial 81 I 

--30--
Media, for information: 
Patrick Gall , Communications Officer, Interior Health 
250-469-7070 ext 12816 

MEDIA - Please note: An audio clip of Dr. Sue Pollock, Medical Health Officer, is attached 10 the email 
containing this document for your use. 

Interior Health is committed to promoting healthy lifestyles and providing a wide range of quality health-care 
services to more than 742,000 people living across B.Cs vast interior. For more information, visit 
www.inleriorhea/th.ca. follow us on Twitter @Inlerior Health, or like us on Face book at 
www.facebook.comllnleriorHea/th. 



From: Sarah Vanderlee [mai lto:svanderlee@builtgreencanada.ca] 
Sent: August-03-17 1:33 PM 
To: Nancy Cooper; Chad Eliason; Kevin Flynn; Alan Harrison; Ken Jamieson; Tim Lavery; Louise Wallace­
Richmond 
Subject: Built Green Canada: Reaching Out 

Hello, 

Built Green Canada is a national, industry-driven organization committed to working with builders interested in 
responsible sustain ability practices in the residential building sector. Our organization offers programs for single 
family and high density, with a renovation program in pilot, and a communities program under developmenl. 

As a municipality committed to creating more sustainable communities, we are wondering if you would be 
interested in receiving updates from our organization? Primarily this would include our quarterly newsletter. 
Would you let us know? 

Our programs take a holistic approach to sustainable building that includes energy efficiency, integrating Natural 
Resources Canada's EnerGuide (applies to Single Family and Renovation program), and then go beyond to include: 
materials and methods, indoor air quality, ventilation, water conservation, waste management, and business 
practices. 

While energy efficiency is a fundamental component of sustainability, there are other important aspects of 
sustainable building. There is a growing view that with 9.36 of the building code, which for the first time set a 
minimum benchmark for energy efficiency, along with BC Energy Step Code (BUILT GREEN® is cited as 
complementary on three of the five tiers), other areas will now be considered by all orders of government in terms of 
the built environment, whether that be materials and methods, water conservation, waste management, etc. Our 
programs are complementary 9.36 and offer a means of assisting in this regulation . 

As you know, sustainable building helps reduce the load on civic infrastructure such as water (supply of fresh water 
and treatment of sewage) and waste (garbage pick-up and landfill) . This reduction can result in significant financial 
savings-savings that could be allocated to rebates, incentives, or directed back to your municipality's budget for 
general revenue. Plus, if you're a municipality that charges fees and levies for these services, the related taxes could 
be reduced, directly impacting your taxpaying voters. 

Whether you're in the planning stages of your environmental initiatives or have these well underway, we wanted to 
reach out as you progress your municipality's sustainability goals. We recognize municipalities may not be able to 
favour one program over another, and therefore encourage municipalities to include Built Green Canada's programs, 
alongside other sustainability programs, as an option to endorse. 

Since our inception, working with builders, Built Green Canada has certified over 28,240 homes represented in 
Alberta, British Columbia, Saskatchewan, and Ontario-including the units in multi-storey projects, the total is over 
29,950. 

Should you require any further information at this time, or if we can be of assistance, please do let us know-we 
would welcome the opportunity of working with you. As well, we have a Municipality Toolkit we would be happy to 
email you should you be interested. 

Thanks in advance. 

Note: We have taken the liberty of including our Second Quarter 2017 Newsletter here for your information and we 
look forward to hearing back. ~ 

~~ 



Jenifer Christenson 
Chief Executive Officer 

Sarah Vanderlee 
Administrative Services Coordinator 

Built Green Canada 

Phone 780.485.0920 
Toll Free 855.485.0920 
Email jchristenson@builtgreencanada.ca 
Web www.builtgreencanada.ca 
Twitter @BuiltGreenCan 
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British Pacific Properties Awarded Innovation Points 
for Water Conservation 

Passionate builders are looking for 
ways to keep their projects smart and 
sustainable-we love that. In an effort 
to encourage and reward better building 
technologies and innovations above 
and beyond what's contained in our 
programs, we've added "innovation 
points" to our programs. 

Photo courtesy of British 
Pacific Properties. 

British Pacific Properties has long been a prominent member of 
the development sector-and of Built Green Canada. They're 
also the first to submit a proposal for innovation points; their 
worthy submission was reviewed by the Technical Standards 
Committee and approved for points. 

For over 85 years, British Pacific Properties has been artfully 
designing and developing land in West Vancouver including the 
British Properties, the Capilano Golf and Country Club, the iconic 
Lions Gate Bridge, Park Royal Shopping Centre, Whitby Estates, 
and the Rodgers Creek residential community. Building lUXUry 
custom homes for over 20 years, Mulgrave Park is one of their 
latest neighbourhoods under development. 

Mike Parker, Senior Project Manager at British Pacific Properties, 
says they approach each project as "land custodians with a 
view it is their responsibility to protect it." A good thing too, as 
Mulgrave Park is surrounded by over ten acres of dedicated 
parkland and protected green space. This forested mountainside 
looks out over the ocean, on a picturesque but formidable 
building site. 

The annual rainfall on these mountain slopes of metro­
Vancouver's North Shore is one third greater than in the rainiest 
city in Canada: Abbotsford, British Columbia. This location poses 
a number of challenges, not least how to manage that much 
runoff with minimal disruption to the natural oasis it's built on: 
they're dealing with water onsite and water offsite. 

Program Updates: CPD Points I Master Builder Training Credits 
Energy Advised 
Are You Leveraging the Benefits of a Certified Build? 
Built Green in the News 
Product Catalogue Connection 

As land is developed, it's important to facilitate on-site water 
infiltration-allowing rainwater to flow back into the ground, rather 
than in to storm sewers, which would both increase the demand 
on infrastructure and further disrupt the natural environment. 
Meanwhile, exfiltration pits capture storm water run-off from the 
roads and hard surfaces, screening out pollutants, and filtering 
the water before it's returned to the soit. 

Building on a site with this level of rainfall-and the resulting 
runoff from the mountain slope rising 750 meters above the 
site-British Pacific Properties has a lot of water to direct from 
its hardscape surfaces. And yet, their consulting team, on this 
project led by John Tynan of Webster Engineering, managed to 
do it: infiltrating or conveying rainwater and groundwater from 
each building site into natural drainage paths throughout the 
development. Read more here. 

Built Green Canada Launches Fourth Municipality 
Challenge 
Increased numbers coincide with builder leadership alongside all 
orders of government's commitment to sustainabte building 

Concurrent with National Environment 
Week, Built Green Canada issued its 
fourth annual challenge to municipalities 
across the country to encourage 
sustainable building policies. The challenge 
was marked by a growing number of 
municipalities to proclaim June 7 as BUILT GREEN® Day. 
This included: Campbell River, Comox, Courtenay, Edmonton, 
Fort Saskatchewan, Kelowna, Moose Jaw, Nanaimo, 
North Vancouver, Penticton, Port Coquitlam, Prince Albert, 
Regina, Saanich, Saskatoon, Strathcona County, st. Albert, 
Squamish, Surrey, Vancouver, Victoria. Chestermere and 
Yorkton acknowledged BUILT GREEN® Day, Collingwood has 
proclaimed the day Built Green Canada Day, Okotoks supported 
BUILT GREEN® Day, and Lethbridge marked the day by lighting 
up City Hall through green LED lights .... Read more here. 



Built Green in Your Community 

Built Green presents to CHBA South Okanagan 

On April 11 , Built Green presented to 
Canadian Home Builders' Association 
South Okanagan in Penticton providing 
updates and what's new at their 
Annual General Meeting. This was 
eligible for Continuing Professional 
Development points. Special thanks to 
Anthony Deane, Tight Lines Contracting 

Andrew MacDonald con· Limited; Carol Sudchak, CHBA South 
gratul"e, winner of Built Okanagan; and all those who attended. 
Green's ThermoDrain draw. 

Built Green Presents to VRBA 

On April 12, Built Green presented to the Victoria Residential 
Builders Association focused on Built Green's recently 
launched Renovation Program. This was eligible for Continuing 
Professional Development points. Special thanks to Casey Edge, 
Debra Dahlgren, and all attendees. 

BUILT GREEN® Platinum Certifications 

Dale Rott, Effect Home Builders Ltd. 
proudly receives BUILT GREEN® Platinum 
certification on their Edmonton-based project. 

Congratulations to all those who achieved Platinum certification 
during this quarter, including: Ace Lange Homes (3), Agius 
Builders Ltd. (6), Blackfish Homes Ltd. (1), Bolder Homes Ltd. 
(1), Citta Construction Ltd. (1), De Waal Developments (1), 
Effect Home Builders Ltd. (1), Fairwest Construction Co. Ltd. 
(4), Falcon Heights Contracting Ltd. (1), Genco Construction 
Ltd. (4), GNB Builders Inc. (1), Greener Homes Ltd. (1), 
Interactive Construction Inc. (2), Landmark Homes (27), Naikoon 
Contracting Ltd. (3), New Era Construction Group (4), Perry 
Signature Homes Inc. (1), Shakespeare Homes and Renovations 
Inc. (1), Spring Creek Mountain Village Inc. (7), TRF Woodcrafts 
Ltd. (1). 

Net Zero homes complement BUILT GREEN® 

We're seeing more BUILT GREEN® Platinum certified I Net 
Zero homes. Landmark Homes, De Waal Developments, and 
Falcon Heights-huge kudos. 

Net Zero homes are complementary to those certified through 
Built Green Canada, whose programs take a holistic approach 
to sustainable building that addresses energy efficiency and 
then goes beyond to include materials and methods, indoor air 
quality, ventilation, waste management, water conservation, 
and business practices. Beyond the benefits of energy 
efficiency, those certified through Built Green offer a healthier, 
more durable home with a lower environmental impact, plus 
the ability to choose your green features. 

www.bui1tgreencanada.com 

Attainable Home Ownership Program Partnership with 
Partners Development Group 

On June 7, Mayor Nenshi welcomed new homeowners in 
Bowness on former City-owned land in parallel to Attainable 
Homes celebrating their BOOth homeowner through their down­
payment assistance program. 

The development, called ARRIVE at Bowness is a partnership 
between Attainable Homes Calgary Corporation and Partners 
Development Group. It is a BUILT GREEN® townhouse 
development that was developed with input from local residents 
over several years and includes a mix of attainable homes and 
market-priced units. 

In 2010, Partners became 
a member of Built Green 
Canada, offering certified 
energy efficient town homes 
through their ARRIVE 
brand, therefore delivering 
certified environmentally 
responsible homes. 
Enhanced through 
energy-conscious building 
techniques, the use of 

(L to R) John Harrop of Attainable Homes, 
City of Calgary Mayor Nenshi, Jenlfer Chris­
tenson of Built Green Canada, and Greg 
Gutek of Partners Development Group. 

'green' materials and practices, and new energy and water 
saving features, the ARRIVE townhomes have Gold certification 
from BUILT GREEN® Canada. 

This is Partners Development Group's fifth development in 
partnership with Attainable Homes. On the occasion of the 
first phase of "ARRIVE at Bowness" possessions, Built Green 
Canada recognized Partners Development Group's innovative 
partnership with Attainable Homes Calgary-providing even 
more affordable BUILT GREEN® homes through utility and 
maintenance savings, as well as automatic mortgage rebate 
eligibility. Big kudos for their leadership in merging sustainable 
building and affordability. 

Edmonton-based De Waal Developments First BUILT 
GREEN® Home also wins at CON Green Building 
Awards 

De Waal Developments' 
first BUILT GREEN® 
home eamed a Platinum 
certification and went on 
to be a Technical Award 
Winner at the Canadian 
Green Building Awards. Photo courtesy: De Waal Developments ltd. 

Noted comments from the jury included 'a commendable 
example of environmentally responsible densification", ' achieving 
its net zero ambitions in a holistic way", and 'water conservation 
and material selection strategies also commendable'-the 
latter comment related to two of seven key areas of the BUILT 
GREEN® Single Family Program. More information here. 
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Cool Things to Do with a BUILT GREEN® Plaque 

We have metal plaques you can purchase to showcase 
your certified home: www, buillgreencan­
ada,calbuilt-g reen-plaques, These can 
also be used as coasters in your show 
homes, belt buckles for your sales staff, 
or a front door knocker, Available for pur­
chase to the builder or the homeowner. 

Philco Construction's Site Waste Management 

" . .,. 
...... ' .. . 

Philco Construction's 
home on Vancouver 
Island used advanced site 
waste management. This 
included connection to 
the fire department prior 
to demolition; the interior 

of home was cleaned out-removal of asbestos, trimldetail 
for reuse, and explosive material. When completed, the fire 
department scheduled the home for training purposes, 

City of Edmonton Launches Energy Labelling Pilot 
Program 

On June 22, the City of Edmonton launched their Energy 
Labelling Pilot Program with a focus on "green champions' in the 
new home market, combined with a significant push to increase 
participation in the existing home market. In the initial days, a 
rebate of $400 is being offered to existing homes (covering 80% 
of the cost of an EnerGuide evaluation). The key to this incentive 
is that it is linked to the sharing of the label on the City's sharing 
platform-a web-based tool that will help builders market homes 
that have an EnerGuide label. The tool publicly shares the 
EnerGuide ratings of participating new and existing homes. 

All home builders using EnerGuide Version 15 (the gigajoule 
rating) are encouraged to participate. The City is working with 
Built Green Canada to explore future partnership opportunities. 
For details, visit ace,edmonton,calenerg uide. 

Energy Efficiency Survey 

Masters Student in Sustainable Development at the University 
of Calgary is conducting research, which looks at energy 
efficiency in residential buildings and seeks to identify barriers to 
mainstreaming high performance homes in Alberta. To participate 
in the survey, the link is here. 

Check out what this supporting member did 
with the BUILT GREEN® log()--€mbroidered 
on their company jackets. Kudos to Jared 
Kress, Owner and Principle of The Eco Floor 
Store, for showcasing leadership in the 
sustainable building industry. 

www.buillgreencanada.com 

Your Competitive Advantage with Built Green 

BUILT GREEN® builders increase their competitive advantage 
with certification through Built Green Canada. This third-party 
certification authenticates and legitimizes a high performance 
build. As a builder, you offer transparency through the BUILT 
GREEN® checklist, while the two labels received-an 
EnerGuide and a BUILT GREEN® label (usually affixed to the 
furnace or electrical panel of the home)-increase credibility and 
offer peace of mind to prospective homebuyers. 

With 9.36 of the building code, you choose how to meet 
the minimum standard for energy efficiency: prescriptive or 
performance. With the performance path, builders are now 
required to do energy modelling to ensure the performance 
meets the standard. BUILT GREEN® builders accomplish this 
through the EnerGuide Rating Program, a requirement for 
certification through Built Green Canada. 

Beyond meeting 9.36 of the building code, builders must find 
ways of increasing their competitive advantage, as this new 
requirement is levelling the playing field as all builders are 
now building to a higher energy efficiency standard. Given 
you already have to meet this requirement, we suggest the 
performance path with the EnerGuide label is an opportunity for 
you to have an edge over your competitors. 

Our programs address energy efficiency, integrating the 
EnerGuide label, and then go beyond for a more holistic 
approach to sustainable building practices that includes the 
preservation of natural resources, reduction of pollution, 
ventilation and air quality, and the improvement of home 
durability. This is important to note as many of the programs 
are focused exclusively on energy, so certification through Built 
Green Canada can really set builders apart-and home buyers 
increasingly are looking for sustainably built, certified homes ... 
the 2017 Canadian Home Buyer Preference National Study 
shows that 63 per cent of homeowners say a high performance 
home is a 'must have. ' • 

As such, our builders are ahead of the curve, demonstrating 
tremendous leadership, while increasing the long-term value ot 
the property and offering additional benefits to their customers. 
Economic benefits like reduced utility bills and rebate eligibility­
all certified homes through Built Green Canada are automatically 
eligible for 15% premium mortgage insurance rebate through 
CMHC and Genworth Canada (insurance documentation must 
have been received after June 22, 2016). 

We know that homes with green certification sell for close to 
10% more on average than homes without, according to the 
Canadian Home Builders' Association's recent research. These 
homes are more durable, which reduces maintenance costs. 

BUILT GREEN® homes are healthier and more comfortable, 
with a lower environmental impact both during the build and in 
the day-to-day operation of running the home-all of these are 
benefits you can pass on to your customers. 
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BUILT GREEN® Builders & Eligibility for Incentives 

Save Your Customer 15% on Mortgage Insurance 

Buying sustainable homes offers savings, making energy­
efficient homes even more affordable for homebuyers. Single 
family new homes certified through Built Green Canada are 
automatically eligible for a partial mortgage loan insurance 
premium refund of 15%. 

Canada Mortgage & Housing Corporation and Genworth Canada 
offer a premium refund of 15% to borrowers who effher buy or 
build through Built Green Canada. 

For more information on how you can save by choosing a BUILT 
GREEN® home, you may visit the CMHC Green Home Program 
/ Genworth Canada's Energy·Efficient Housing Program. 

Please direct your homebuyers to contact the Built Green office 
to obtain their Building Certificate of Authenticity from Built Green 
Canada: info@builtgreencanada.ca or toll free 1.855.485.0920. 

FortisBC's New Home Program- BUILT GREEN® 
Builders & Eligibility 

BUILT GREEN® builders labelling under BUILT GREEN® whose 
projects meet the New Home Standard and are natural gas 
heated homes and electrically-heated homes in the FortisBC 
electric service territory, will be eligible for FortisBC incentives. 

For more information: www.fortisbc.com/newhome. 

Built Green Canada Toll Free: 1.855.485.0920 
New Home Program: Toll Free: 1.855.888.4633 

Manitoba Hydro's Power Smart for New Homes and 
Built Green 

Those BUILT GREEN® builders labelling under BUILT GREEN® 
whose projects meet Manitoba Hydro's Power Smart for New 
Homes' technical requirements, through the prescriptive or 
performance path, may be eligible for Manitoba Hydro financial 
incentives. Power Smart for New Homes offers design and 
energy modelling incentives to encourage builders to construct 
homes at least 20 per cent more energy efficient than new, 
comparable homes-this includes covering the cost for the 
blower door test. 

Innovation Points: NEW 

We are encouraging builders to integrate innovative 
sustainable building practices above and beyond what is 
contained within our programs. The innovation must apply 
to a specific BUILT GREEN® project and will be reviewed 
by the Technical Standards Committee at the time of 
submission. This is applicable to Single Family, Renovation, 
and High Density projects. 

WWrN.bui1tgreencanada.com 

PROGRAM UPDATES 

Training is Eligible for CPD Points I Master Builder 
Training Credits 

We believe training is essential. BUILT GREEN® builder and 
renovator members are required to take training every two years, 
and must be trained in BUILT GREEN® practices, policies, and 
procedures prior to building their BUILT GREEN® projects. 
Contracted trades and/or suppliers are also encouraged to take 
our training, as are non-members interested in our programs. 

We encourage you to consider our online training options: 

BUILT GREEN® Program Fundamentals 
$150 for BUILT GREEN® members / $250 for non·members 

• 3 CPD Points through BC Housing 
• Master Builder Training Credits through Professional Home 

Builders Institute 

Overview: A requirement for new builders, this focuses on the 
fundamental aspects of the program to orient participants on how 
to work with Built Green; introduces them to the administrative 
and technical requirements; prepares them to successfully 
navigate Built Green's quality assurance processes; and offers 
them resources to successfully build BUILT GREEN® homes. 

To register: www.buil tgreencanada.ca/built-g reen-program-
fu nd am e n ta I s-reg is tration 

We strongly recommend building science training as a natural 
progression and to encourage continued education, points may 
be earned on our checklist for doing so. 

Construction Technology for BUILT GREEN® 
$276.50 for BUILT GREEN® members' / $395 for non-members 

• 15 CPO Points through BC Housing 
• Master Builder Training Credits through Professional Home 

Builders Institute 

Overview: Placing heavy emphasis on building science and 
building better, this course addresses the house as a system 
concept; the role of sustainable development in construction; 
how building science affects durability and occupant comfort; the 
signs, symptoms, and solutions for indoor air quality; building 
envelope details and how they control or contribute to heat, 
air, and moisture flows; and mechanical systems. There are 14 
online modules, each with a downloadable study guide. This is 
offered through online training provider, Blue House Energy-a 
company committed to the delivery of online, on-demand 
courses in building science and energy efficiency for trades, 
renovators, contractors, and home performance professionals. 

'Obtain your 30% discount code through Built Green Canada 
before registering . To register: www.bluehouseenergy.com/ 
prod uctslco n s tructi on-tech nology-fo r -bu i I t -g ree n -mem bers 
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Upcoming Training Session: ICF 

Photo courtesy of Vancouver ICE 

One of Built Green's product 
catalogue companies, Vancouver 
ICF is holding their next Nudura® 
training session on Friday, July 
28 at the Vancouver ICF Training 
Centre located at Annacis Island, 
Unit 20, 1610 Derwent Way in Delta, 

BC. The course is designed for hands-on training and will cover 
everything from footing formwork to embedding electrical wiring 
in the Nudura® ICF. 4.0 CPO points will result from the full 
session. To register: www.vancollvericf.com/training/registration. 
php 

Single Family Verifications 

As a component of our quality assurance process, a selection of 
single family homes are randomly selected to undergo an onsite 
verificalion, which is conducted by the builder's Energy Advisor. 
This is increasing the rigour of the BUILT GREEN® certification 
process and adds another level of credibility to the program. 
To-date one third of the 2017 verifications have been completed 
and submitted. 

Energy Advised 
Clint Pol/onais, Conscious Vibe Consulting Inc. 

With building code changes and the increased 
emphasis on sustainable building, of which 
energy efficiency is a key component, the role 
of an Energy Advisor (EA) has become ever more important. 
Experts in energy efficiency, they're licensed by Natural 
Resources Canada to deliver the EnerGuide Rating System-a 
key component of our Single Family and Renovation programs. 

These folks have honed strong energy advising skills through 
years of related practice, and their role is invaluable in 
sustainable building practices. Our programs are fortunate to 
work with very knowledgeable, experienced Energy Advisors. 
We encourage you to fully utilize these folks in your builds; 
they have so much to offer you and your customers. 

Based in Calgary, Alberta, Clint is the Founder of Conscious 
Vibe Consulting Inc. a company specializing in services for 
homebuilders that include: blower door testing, thermography, 
energy modelling, and 9.36 code compliance for residential 
projects. Additionally, their services include access to 
specialized building science training for builders, as well as 
trades and suppliers focused on wood frame single and multi­
family dwellings. 

www.builtgreencanada.com 

BC Energy Step Code and Built Green 

In April the BC Energy Step Code came out, providing 
pertormance targets (steps) to support market transition from 
current building code energy-efficiency requirements to net zero 
energy ready buildings. Rather than specifying how homes must 
be built, BC Energy Step Code identifies progressive energy­
efficiency targets and references complementary certification 
programs, leaving the designerlbuilder to decide how they'll 
meet them. This voluntary standard for builders may also be 
referenced under the Building Act in local government bylaws 
and policies as 'unrestricted matter'. Built Green's programs 
have been cited as complementary on three of the five tiers. 
More information here. 

Featured Tweet 
Blackfish Homes tweets: 'Learning 
about the new #BCstepcode and 
its implementation for #netzero by 
2032. Great to see @BuiltGreenCan 
included #buildbetter@GVHBA" 

Clint has been working in the residential housing industry 
since 2008. As a licensed Energy Advisor, his main focus is to 
provide expertise to builders and individual clients on how to 
best improve the energy efficiency of their homes. 

Clint has completed R2000 building science training and is 
also certified to rate homes as EnerGuide or ENERGY STAR. 
With well over 5,000 homes evaluated and blower door tested, 
Clint has been exposed to many different scenarios and home 
types, which has contributed to a wealth of experience and 
knowledge. 

With a firm belief that responsible building does not have to 
be a difficult and overly expensive endeavour, Conscious 
Vibe Consulting was created out of a need for individuals and 
builders to have another option for a top-notch home rating 
and consulting service without complicated processes and long 
turnaround times. 

Clint believes in giving back and his charitable work has 
included Habitat for Humanity - Southern Alberta. 

For more information: email cvconsult@shaw.ca. phone 
403.404.6204, or visit www.cvconsultinc.com 

For a list of Energy Advisors in your area, please contact the 
Built Green Canada office. 
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Are You Leveraging Benefits of A Certified Build? 

Whether an active member or still learning about how Built Green 
sets you apart, we encourage you to familiarize yourself with 
the Membership Package, including our Marketing Toolkit and 
the consumer-focused tools found there, which will assist you 
in strengthening the benefits you receive for building to BUILT 
GREEN® certification and provide tools to assist in your sales 
and marketing efforts. 

Key messages repeated over time increase awareness and 
drive consumer demand. Be sure to integrate messages about 
the benefits of a BUILT GREEN® home through all the touch 
points along the homebuyer's transaction chain, such as: your 
website, social media activity, and signage-all those first places 
a prospective home buyer may be exposed to you; your show 
home, to what your sales people focus on; to choosing features, 
upgrades, and finishes; to the final walk through and inspection, 
to the welcome package and builder warranty follow-up. 

A sustainably-built home and the features it offers alone may not 
sell a home; however, these features add credibility to your builds 
and pass-along benefits to your customers, and it can be the 
tipping point between you and your competitor. 

Showcase these green features-the whole is only as good as 
the sum of its parts ... drill down on key components of the house 
and set the stage to focus on features-while building a home is 
second nature to you, it isn't to your customer. By drilling down, 
you're able to more meaningfully highlight features and options 
available. Whether your sales staff or a realtor, ensure they're 
communicating the benefits of a sustainably built home through 
Built Green Canada. 

We encourage you to take the time to educate a customer on 
individual green features and their associated benefit. Educating 
a customer will move them from a prospect to a homebuyer. We 
have marketing materials to help educate--make sure these are 
in your marketinglsales people's hands. 

Built Green in the News 

Over the second quarter of 2017, related media coverage 
was picked up by a number of outlets, including BC Building 
Info Newsletter, Calgary Herald (x4 plus), SYS-CON Media, 
Marketwired, The Canadian Business Journal, Yahoo 
Bix, Facebook, Sustainable Building & Design Magazine, 
Canadian Green Building SAB Magazine, NEW Homes & 
Condos Edmonton Magazine (x3), E-KNOW, Press Reader, 
Latestcanada.com, CHBA National Industry Highlights, 
Vancouver Sun, Lethbridge Herald, Construction Links Media, 
CFCR 90.5 FM, Island Daily (Saanich), Tri-City News (Victoria), 
Saanich News, Goldstream News Gazette, Journal of Commerce, 
Kelowna News, The Future Economy, Powell River Peak, 
Parksville Qualicum Beach News, SAB Magazine, as well as 
search engine placement on Google, Yahoo, Bing, Ask, and 
Excite; and placement on major news services on AP Editorial, 
Dialog, TrackDate, and EIN Presswire. 

WNW.builtgreencanada.com 

Product Catalogue Connection 

Save Time: Source Products Approved for Programs 

Our online Product Catalogue is a resource of sustainable 
products. Products have been approved by Built Green Canada, 
giving builders peace of mind and saving them time sourcing. 
Our program checklists guide home certification, and products in 
our catalogue are tied to specific checklist items. 

Below, our featured Product Catalogue contributors are listed with 
their BUILT GREEN® approved products. If used in your BUILT 
GREEN® project, these products earn checklist points. 

BASF 
Earning points in Envelope & Energy Systems 
, WALLTlTE® is a medium-ilensity polyurethane insulation I 

air barrier designed to improve the energy efficiency of any 
type of building. Its industry-leading performance results in 
substantial energy saving. its formulation includes recycled 
plastic and a zero ozone-ilepleting blowing agent qualifying it 
as the first closed-cell spray polyurethane insulation to obtain 
the EcoLogo'" , North America's most widely recognized multi­
attribute environmental certification. (1.1.6, 1.1 .8) 

Owens Corn ing 
Earning points in Envelope & Energy Systems, Materials & 
Methods, and Indoor Air Qualffy 
, Canada's No. 1 Insulation, EcoTouch® PINKTM FIBERGLAS® 

Insulation. Insulate interior walls, floors, and ceilings. With 
outstanding thermal resistance for energy savings, it also 
maintains insulating power over time. (2.2.5, 3.9) 

, The Owens Coming FOAMULAR® CodeBord® Air Barrier 
System helps provide a continuous exterior air, moisture and 
thermal barrier, which minimizes heat loss or gain and provides 
a comfortable indoor living environment for occupants. (1.1.8) 

Innotech Windows and Doors 
Eaming points in Envelope & Energy Systems and Materials & 
Methods 
, Innotech 'Tilt + Glide Sliding Glass Doors' , 'Tilt + Tum Terrace 

Swing Glass Doors', and "Tilt + Turn Picture Windows" are 
EnergyStar qualified for Zones AB (double glazed) and Zones 
ABCD (triple glazed). Depending on the finish, they may 
also have recycled content in the perimeter frames. (1.1.16, 
2.2.13.1) 

Desert Spring Eco-Products 
Earning points in Ventilation 
, The Canadian-made pulse humidifier system is a true water­

efficient, flow-through humidifier. Water consumption is 
caretully monitored and controlled by its patented pulse control 
unit, which senses the by-pass air temperature and meters 
water flow to avoid potential standing water issues or reduction 
in output. (4.6) 
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SQUAMISH 
HARDWIRED for ADVE NTURE 

July 19, 2017 

Sent by email 

Re: Support for Resolutions 

Dear Mayor and Council, 

The District .of Squainish has submitted three resolutions for consideration at the 2017 UBCM 

Convention, two of them regaraing .provincial Environmental Assessment process and the other 

regarding access to Sexual Assault Forensic kits. We would like to take this opportunity to 

request·yo.ur support of these resolutions. 

Compensation fOr Staff Time Spent on Environmental i\ss.essments 

WHEREAS the Provincial and'Federol Environmental Assessment processes are not the 

direct jurisdiction of Local 'Governments ·on.d therefore not subject to ossociated service 
cast recovery fees ond cost of publiC engagement; 

AND WHEREAS these Environmental Assessment processes con 'be very time consuming, 
expensive and onerous for Local Government staff, community and Council; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Provincial Government set up a funding system to 

allow for Local Governments to be compensated for the staff time spent including 
researciJ, review, technical and working group parUcipation, and ta augment and 
support community engagement during the en tire process; 

AND FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED that the Provincial Government's EAO Fee Schedule be 

revised to include a fee for Lacol Governments throughout the certification process. 

Impravements ta the Provincial Environmental ASSessment Process 
WHEREAS a project subject to Provincial Environmental Assessment process can be 

separated into different EA processes or excluded from the process altogetller such as 
hydro, gas supply, navigation, etc. 

AND WHEREAS, because of this, there is no cumulative analysis that crea tes a clear picture 
of the entire impact of a proposal, including the five pillars of environmentol 
assessment; Economic, Social, Environmental, Health and Heritage, thereby distorting 
and potentially minimizes the magnitude of the impact or understanding by the 
communi ty and local government; 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOL VED that the Province consider projects in tlleir entirety when 
evaluating them through th e environmental assessment Office. 

Di stricl o f Squilm j ~h 37955 Second '\ Yl'llu(' PO Box] 10 Squanl!sh SlImh Colurllbl,l V8U OA3 

Ph 60·1892.5117 or 1.877.892.52 17 s qll .l rn i ~h .( .l 



Improved Funding and Access for Forensic Sexual Assault Evidence Kits (SAEC) 
WHEREAS sexual assault evidence collectian (SAEe) kits are currently funded through the 

Ministry of Health. The SAEe kits are considered evidence that is from a committed 

crime. 

AND WHEREAS survivors of sexual assault need medical forensic examinations readily 

available on demand and should not be expected to trovel further than 50km to 
facilitate equitable access to justice and associated resources. 

THEREFORE 85 IT RESOLVED that the Provincial Government move funding from the 

Ministry of Heolth to the Ministry of Justice and fund comprehensive, 24/7 access to 
services and staffing needed (sexual assault nurse examiners) and to provide SAEe kits 

in communities lacking in forensic services. 

Th~nk you for considering our resolutions and your support is appreciated . 

. ~ 
ricia Heintzman, Mayor 

District of Squamish 
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From: Mary Beadman [mailto:mbeadman@sidit-bc.ca j 
Sent: July-27-17 10:03 AM 
To: SIDIT Administrator 
Subject: Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust (SIDIT) Fiscal 2017 Annual Report 

Hello SIDIT Thompson Okanagan Regional Advisory Committee Member, 

Re: Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust (SIDIT) Fiscal 2017 Annual Report 

Please find attached, SIDIT's Fiscal 2017 Annual Report, which has been prepared for our stakeholders, 
that includes the British Columbia Provincial Government. The Report showcases SIDIT's ongoing 
support of economic development initiatives in the Southern Interior, from the Thompson Okanagan 
Region to the Columbia Kootenay Region, and includes SIDIT's audited financial statements, prepared by 
our external auditor KPMG LLP. 

Fiscal 2017 was a successful year for SIDIT, we funded $3,759,805 in loans and investments, and have 
cumulatively leveraged loans and investments at 2:22 to 1. We awarded $726,511 in grants, including 
post-secondary educational support. 

Since 2006, SIDIT has preserved the initial $50 million allocation from the BC Government and has 
invested nearly $55 million in projects worth over $218 million. SIDIT's overall economic impact exceeds 
$288 million, creating and preserving more than 3,000 jobs across the region. SIDIT's ongoing support of 
small to medium size businesses, including start-ups, provides them the opportunity to expand 
operations, attract and retain employees, and allows them to compete in the global marketplace. 

As part of SIDIT's ongoing reporting and self-evaluation commitment, a third·party Socio·Economic 
Impact Assessment Report was prepared by Lochaven Management Consultants/Urban Matters. The 
report reviewed qualitative and quantitative impact related information, and employed both primary 
and secondary research. The report can be found on our website at https:l!sidit-bc.ca!about­
us/resources/. 

In addition, as part of SIDIT's ongoing commitment to collaboration and partnerships, SIDIT undertook 
two new programs in Fiscal 2017. The first being, SIDIT's ongoing commitment to helping post­
secondary students by partnering with UBC Okanagan through their Student Co-Op Program, wherein 
students are place in small to medium sized business in the Southern Interior with a portion of the 
student's wage subsidized by SIDIT. 

The other exciting program initiative is the Business AdviSOry Services Program, wherein small to 
medium size businesses in southern interior communities may procure customized peer to peer 
mentoring solutions, that are specifically developed for their individual needs. 

We hope you enjoy and share our Annual Report with your colleagues and professional network. We 
encourage you to visit our websites, www.sidit-bc.ca and www.siditbas.com, to learn more about SIDIT 
and our programs. Electronic copies of SIDIT's Fiscal 2017 Annual Report are available on our website 
at: https:l!sidit-bc.ca!about-us!resources! 

Sincerely, 



Luanne Chore, Chief Executive Officer 
Ichore@sidit-bc.ca 

236-420-3680, ext 203 





PHONE 236-420-3680 

FAX 236-420-3687 



2017 Message from the 
Board of Directors Chair, Grace McGregor 

it has been another productive and progressive year 

at the Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust 

("SIDIT"). As highlighted in 2016, SIDIT has had remarkable 

achievements over the last 11 years. The SIDIT story began 

on February 27, 2006, when the Provincial BC Government 

made a one-time allocation of $50 million to support 

strategic Investments in economic development projects in 

the Southern Interior. 51DIT has preserved that $50 million 

asset and invested nearly $55 million in projects worth over 

$21B million. 

As part of slDlT's ongoing reporting and self-evaluation 

commitment, it had a third-party Socia-Economic Impact 

Assessment Report (the "Report") prepared by Lochaven 

Management Consultants/Urban Matters in 2016. The 

Report reviewed both qualitative and quantitative impact 

related information, and employed both primary and 

secondary research. The Report noted that through its 

funding efforts since 2006, SIDIT contributed to the creation 

and preservation of 3,1 13 short and long term jobs. The 

Board of Directors and myself, are very proud of what this 

Report highlighted and confirmed that the efforts of the 

current and previous Board of Directors, and the hard work 

ofthe SIDIT Staff is paying off, in long-term sustainable and 

measurable solutions for economic development in the 

Southern Interior Region, 

As part of SIDWs ongoing commitment to co llaboration 

and partnerships, SIDIT undertook two new programs in 

Fiscal 2017, and are starting to see the benefits of those 

programs. 

One of those programs is the Student Co-Op Program, 

developed by UBC Okanagan. Students are placed in small 

to medium size businesses in the Southern Interior, with a 

portion of their wage cost subsidized by SIDIT. 

This co llaborative effort between SIDIT and UBC Okanagan 

assists businesses in the local communities build capacity 

and provides students with the hands on tra ining 

opportunities they need in the work force. As a result, 

this collaboration provides long-lasting and measurable 

benefits to the people and communities in the Southern 

Interior Region. SIDITwili look at expanding this program to 

other post~se(ondary institutions over the next few years. 

Another exciting program initiative is the Business Advisory 

Services Program. The Business Advisory Services Program 

was offiCially rolled out in September 2016. Under the 

.Program, clients are provided with customized peer to peer 

mentorlng solutions that are developed in conjunction 

with that client's needs and are designed to assist them in 

growing and sustaining their businesses. 

Testimonials from the students that SIDIT has helped 

achieve their goals and from clients of the Business 

Advisory Services Program, are highlighted at pages 48-50 

of this report. 

The Board of Directors and Staff of SIDIT will continue to 

build on our past successes by developing and maintaining 

collaborative partnerships and fostering entrepreneurial 

ingenuity, with a commitment to leveraging partnershi ps 

and funding. 

Lastly, I would like to acknowledge and thank a few of 

our Directors who have moved on in the last year: Karen 

Cathcart, Elizabeth (Beth) Garrish and Phil ip Jones; their 

contributions to 510IT during their terms as Directors is 

greatly appreciated. To learn more about SIDIT, please visit 

www.sid itbc.ca. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Grace McGregor 

SIDIT Chairman of the Board 
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Governance 

51DIT was created by an Act of the BC Legis lature - Bill 8-2005, which came into force by regulation on February 27, 2006. 

51DIT received a one-time allocation of $50 million designated for strategic investments in sustainable economic development 

initiatives throughout the Southern Interior. The Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust Act mandates investment in ten 

areas of the economy. These areas include Energy, Forestry, Mining, Olympic Opportunities, Agricu lture, Transportation, Small 

Business, Tourism, Pine Beetle Recovery, and Economic Development. SIDIT has no specific targets for any of these areas, and 

approves projects and investments based on their impact, sustainability, and individual merit. 



Board of Directors 

SIDIT is governed by a board of thirteen directors: eight are elected officials appointed by two Regional Advisory Committees; 

and the other five are appointed by the Province of British Columbia. The Board is responsible for identifying the strategic 

direction of 510lT, policy decisions, and investment decisions in support of a variety of regional economic priorities, as well as 

other opportunities which contribute to the econom ic diversity of the Southern Interior. The Board meets quarterly in person or 

by telephone conference, and electronically as required. 

Elected Officials 

Grace McGregor 
SIDIT Chairman 
Director, Area C 

Kootenay Boundary Region 

AI Ra ine 
Mayor, Sun Peaks 

Thompson Nicola Region 

Doug Findlater 
Mayor, West Kelowna 

Central Okanagan Region 

Aimee Watson 
Director Area 0 

Columbia Kootenay Region 

Provincial Appointees 

~ lO\Ii 

i~I~':;" 
, , 

'., -
... • 1 ~ 

. '.tl. " . . " ,~ , 

Claudette Everitt 
SlOtT Vice-Chairman 
Provincial Appointee 

North Okanagan Region 

David Wilks 
Provincial Appointee 
East Kootenay Region 

Ron Hovanes 
Mayor, Town of Oliver 

Okanagan Similkameen Region 

Lee Pratt 
Mayor, Cranbrook 

East KootenayRegion 

John Zimmer 
Provincial Appointee 
East Kootenay Region 

Loni Parker 
Director, Area B 

Columbia Shuswap Region 

Peter Moore 
Provincial Appointee 

North Okanagan Region 

Greg McCune 
Mayor, City of Enderby 

North Okanagan Region 

One Vacancy 
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Regional Advisory Committees 

Under the governing legislation, two Regional Advisory Committees (RACs) have been created representing mayors, chairs 

of Regional Districts, and members of the legislative assembly. 

Thompson-Okanagan Regional Advisory Committee representing the region from Blue River to the North, Hope to the 

West and South to the US border. 

Columbia-Kootenay Regiona l Advisory Committee representing Columbia-Revelstoke, East Kootenay to the West 

Kootenay-Boundary area. 

The role of the Regional Advisory Committees is to elect members to the Board of Directors of SIDIT, to provide advice, 

recommendations on Trust funding project eligibility, to provide representation opportunities for communities and regional 

district areas under SOO in population. 

The current Regional Advisory Committee members are as follows: 



Thompson Okanagan Regional 
Advisory Committee Members: 

NAME LOCATION 

Mayor Kevin Acton 

Mayor Frank Armitage 

Dan Ashton, MLA 

Mayor James Baker 

Mayor CoUn Basran 

[i;orMa,nf~ Bauer 

Mayor Rick Berrigan 

Ma)'qr janice Brown 

Christy Clark, MlA 

orNan (00 , 

Mayor (indy Fortin 

Eric FoSler, MW 

Jason Lum, (hair 

~llmGallkk 

Gail Given, (hair 

Ma)'O[ John H.\V<O<id 

Village of lumby 

Town of Princeton 

Penlicton 

District of Lake (ountry_~_ .... ..J 

City of Kelowna 

Village of Keremeos 

Village of Chase 

Township ofSp!Uu heen 

Westside-Kelowna 

City of Salmon Arm 

North Okanagan Regional District 

(It .ofWest Kelowna 

District of Peachland 

Vernon-Monishee 

FraserValley Regional Distri(t 

Dlstrtct ofColdstlNm 

Regional District of Centra! Okanagan 

District of (learwater 

Mayor Ronald Hovanes (5101T Director) Town of Dliver 

Mayor Andrew Ja~ubeil City ofPenlicton 

Greg Ky llo, MLA Shuswap 

Peter MUobar, MlA Kcllolooj»-North TIlompsull 

linda larson, MLA Boundary-Similkameen 

Norm tetnlck, MLA Kelowna-lake (ountry 

Rhona Martin, Chair Columbia Shuswap Regional District 

Mayor Greg McCune(SIDIT Director) City of Enderby 

Mayor Sue McKortoff Town Of050YOOS 

Mayor Nell Menard City ofMerrilt 

Mayor Peter Milobar City ofKamloops 

Mayor AkOOI Mund City of Vernon 

Karla Kozakevich, Chair Regional District Okanagan-Similkameen 

Mayor Chris Pieper City of Armstrong 

Mayor AI Raine (SIDIT Director) Sun Peaks Mountain Resort Municipality 

John Ranta, Chair Thompson-Nicola Regional DIstrict 

MayorTerry Rysz District ofSicamous 

MayorVlrglnla Smith Drstrict of Barriere 

Todd Stone, MLA Kamloops-South Thompson 

Jackie Tegal!, MLA Fraser-Nicola 

Steve Thomson, MLA Kelowna-Missloll 

laurie Throness, MlA Chilliwack-Hope 

MayorWilfried Vicklor District of Hope 

MayorPeterWaterman DlstrictofSummerland 

Columbia-Kootenay Regional 
Advisory Committee Members: 

NAME LOCATION 

loni Parker, Director (SIDIT Director) Columbia Shuswap Regional District, 
Area'B' 

Ramona Fausl, Dlre<lor Regional District Central Kootenay, 
AreaE 

Mayor Deb Kozak Regional DIstrict Central Kootenay, 
Town of Nelson 

R~lonal District Central KOotenay, 
...... 0 

MaYQT Mary Giuliano Regional District of East Kootenay, 
CityofFernie 

Mayor Lee Pratt (SIDIT Director) 

Neil Krog, Councillor 

Katrine Conroy, MLA 

Tom Shrpltka, MIA " 

CityofCranbrook 

Regional District Kootenay Boundary, 
CIIy of Grand Forks 

Rtglonal District Koo~na, _~. 
A .. C 

West Kootenay 

East KooteNY ....... 
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Service Area 

The service area for SIDIT includes Blue River to the North, Hope to the West and the 
United States and Alberta borders as Southern and Eastern boundaries respectively. 

Thompson-Okanagan Region 

REG IONAL DISTRICT OF CO LU MBIA SHUSWAP 
Salmon Arm, Sicamous 

REGIONAL OI STRICT OF CE NTRAL OKANAGA N 
Kelowna, Lake Country, Peachland, West Kelowna 

FRASER VALLEY REGIONAL DISTRICT 
Hope 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF NORTH OKANAGAN 
Vernon, Coldstream, Spallumcheen. Armstrong, 
Enderby, Lumby 

REG IONAL DISTR ICT OF OKANAGAN SIMILKAMEEN 
Penticton, Summerland, Osoyoos, Oliver, Princeton, 
Keremeos 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF THOMPSON NICOLA 
Kamloops, Merritt, Chase, Barriere, Clearwater, 
Sun Peaks Mounta in Resort 

Columbia Kootenay Region 

REGIO NAL DI STRI CT OF CO LUMBIA SHU SWAP 
Revelstoke, Go lden 

REGIONAL DIST RICT OF EAST KOOTENAY 
Cranbrook, Kimberley, Fernie, Sparwood, Invermere, 
Elkford, Canal Flats, Rad ium Hot Springs 

REG IONAL DISTRICT OF CENTRAL KOOTENAY 
Nelson, Castlegar, Creston, Nakusp, Sa lmo, Kaslo, 
New Denver, Siocan, Silverton 

REGIONAL DISTRICT OF KOOTENAY BOUNDARY 
Trail, Grand Forks, Ross land, Fruitvale, Warfield, Montrose, 
Greenwood, Midway 

~.:t~I .. ~ 
Dlm.Of'tioo HltA1N1 TMISl 

Soull.trn Interior Development InlllaUve Trustj 
Sfrvlce Art" (md /ncofl>Oflted Communlfl.s 

201612017 
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Vision and Mission 

The SIDIT Board of Directors and Regional Advisory 

Committee members share a vision of the future for the 

Southern Interior, as follows: 

a future where economic opportunities are enabled, 
providing long-lasting measurable benelits to 

communities 

a future where regional investment creates significant 
positive impacts across the region while smaller 
communities are given opportunities to remain or become 
economically sustainable 

a future where there is a strong and diversified economy 

in the Southern Interior that supports the development 
of viable, healthy, vital and sustainable communities 
throughout 

The Board's mission expresses how they see the Trust 

contributing to this vision for Southern Interior, as follows: 

The mission of the Trustis to support regionally strategic 

investments in economic development projects that will 
have long-lasting and measurable regional benelits for the 
Southern Interior. 



510lT Mandate 

The Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust Act 

mandates investment in economic development initiatives 

within ten key sectors that will demonstrate long term 

measurable economic impact within the Southern Interior. 

While the Trust is not an agent of the Government, as a 

Public Trust it must comply with public sector regulations. 

The ten key sectors are: 

Agriculture 

Economic development 

Energy 

Forestry 

Mining 

Tourism (make a second column here) 

Olympic opportunities 

Pine Beetle recovery 

Small Business 

• Transportation 

SIDIT is managed as an independent and sustainable 

regional economic development corporation. StOlT's capital 

is invested in a balanced mix of financial markets and loan 

or equity investments in regionally based commercial 

enterprise to ensure sustainability and growth. Funding 

outflows align with returns generated. 

Within its mandate, SIDIT lends to and invests In promising 

commercial enterprises. SIOIT assesses the long-term 

potential of lending and investment opportunities and will 

consider a more patient position than would a traditional 

lender. 



Funding by Investment Sector 

Applications received are proponent driven, therefore there are no specific investment targets for any of the ten key areas. 

SIDIT approves projects and investments based on their impact, susta inability, and individual merit. 

Fisca I 2017 I nvestment by Sector 
Agriculture, $162,500 

Ag riculture includes: manufacture of products used in 

the agriculture industry; research and development in 

agri-business and biotechnology resources; community 

based food and herb production; nurseries; community 

based abattoir services; organic gardening training and 

certification services and community based Ag riplexlmulti­

purpose buildings. 

Economic Development, $584,711 

Economic Development includes: Investment in education 

in trades; technology and science related academic 

programs; innovation and entrepreneurship programs; 

business advocacy; international market development; 

business incubators; research and development; business 

productivity tra ining; broadband initiatives and community 

investment in conference and training centers. 

Energy, $750,000 

Energy includes: research and development of energy 

related technology; energy efficiency products and 

services; and bio-energy solutions. 

Forestry, $25,000 

Forestry includes: those investments re lated to community 

forests and va lue added industry. 

Mining, $0 

Mining includes va lue-added manufacturing. 

Tourism, $784,300 

Tourism includes heritage-based tourism, geo-tourism, trail 

development, arts and culture and sports tourism. 

Olympic Opportunity, $25,000 

Olympic Opportunities reflect community investments into 

training facilities and equipment that have been or will be 

used to train fu ture Olympians. 

Pine Beetle Recovery, $0 

Pine Beetle Recovery includes: research and development; 

market development; and manufacture of va lue-added 

products. 

5mall Business, $3,120,000 

Small Business includes: investment in business enterprises 

such as software development, communications; fire 

prevention; health care; pharmaceuticals; composite 

manufacturing; electronics manufacturing; reta il and 

wholesale; micro-breweries and other business activities. 

Transportation, $0 

Transportation includes: commercial transportation 

services; airport hazard equipment; and heliport 

construction. 
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2007-2017 Cumulative Investment by Sector 

Agriculture, $2.586.950 

Sma ll8usiness, $33,133,321 

Energy, $1,060.898 

$7,961,452 

/"FOrE"'ry, $2,242,964 
/" 1~loI ,"g, $435,000 

--;;;f--------Pii" Beetle, $580,934 

$2,943.496 

'rranso,,",,"Oo, $1,741,000 

2017 Investment-.by Sector 

Tourism, '7.',3.' __ _ 

Smlll BUlin.$!, ' 3,, 120,000_/ 

/-A&""'''''~'' $162,500 

:-_ "0,"""" $25,000 

Economic OeVtllopment, 
$584,711 

Energy, $750,000 

Olympic Oppor1unitv. 
$25,000 
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Guiding Principals 

In all our dealings SIOIT is: 

• Sensitive to the cultural uniqueness and diversity of the 

population of the Southern Interior. 

Accountable to the pUblic for all of 510fT's activities 

and transparent in all of our processes, decisions and 

reporting. 

• Treat everyone with respect and dignity 

• Support only those projects that comply with all 

applicable environmental legislation. 

• Support projects that add value to the communities and 

regions of the Southern Interior. 

Responsive to the needs and aspirations of the people 

and communities in the Southern Interior. 

• Maintain a sustainable Trust that can provide ongoing 

~upport for economic Initiatives for·the Southern 

Interior. 

• Encourage investment in the Southern Interior through 

leveraging and by acting as a catalyst. 

• Support the creation, preservation and/or enhancement 

of employment in the Southern interior. 

• To the best extent possible. ensure that all regions of 

the Southern Interior have fair and equitable access to 

the SIOITFunds. 

• Support economic diversification and sustainability 

within Southern Interior communities. 

Support and create sound. economically viable 

communities. 

Socio-Economic Impact Assessment 

Complete an external Socia-Economic Impact Assessment 

every five years: 

A regional impact assessment was completed by Urban 

Matters and Lochaven Management Consultants in 

August 2016. 

The impact assessment will be updated in 2021. 

• The assessment, and additional economic data, was 

reviewed by the SIOIT Board of Oirectors in the strategic 

planning session on September S, 2016 to prepare 

510fT's fiscal 2018-2020 three-year strategic plan. 



Risk and Risk Management Strategies 
SIDIT FACES THE FOLLOWING KEY RISKS IN ITS INVESTMENTS AND OPERATIONS: 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from the fai lure of a borrower to honour its financial or contractual obligation to 

SIDIT. Credit risk primarily arises from development initiatives receivable. Within its mandate, SIDIT lends to, and invests in, 

promising commercial enterprises that may not fully qualify for credit through traditional sources. SIDIT assesses the long­

term potential of lending and investment opportunities and will consider being patient for cash flow providing that other 

positive credit and community economic Indicators are in evidence in the application. 

It Is envisioned that loans and investments made by SIDIT will eventually become bankable at which time the enterprise 

may retire the SIDIT position in favour of a traditional lender, allowing SIDlT's funds to be re-invested In other promising 

enterprises. If there are any business proposals presented to SIOIT in which SIOIT does not have the specific commercial 

knowledge, it will search out or contract the expertise. Alternatively, SIDIT will also parrl passu, syndicate or co-fund these 

types of commercial ventures with other Lending Partners that have the expertise required. 

SIDIT Management and Board of Directors review and update the credit risk policy annually. Credit risk rating systems are 

designed to assess and quantify the risk inherent in credit activities in an accurate and consistent manner. 

SIDIT determines enterpri se risk based on a careful study of the business plan, past performance of the enterprise if 

applicable and management capacity of the principals in order to gain a sufficient level of comfort that future cash flow and 

equity targets will be achieved. 

With in the context of the SIDIT Act, SIOIT balances the level of risk that is present with the community economic benefits 

that are being created and satisfies itself that the potential of the deal is sound and prudent in order to protect the future 

of the SIDIT fund. 

All applications are risk-rated according to SIDlT's Risk Rating Guidelines (refer to SIDlT's By- law and Policy Manual on our 

website) as part of the original underwriting of loans and investments, annual review and renewal. 

SlOtT manages its loan and equity risk by limiting its investment in anyone business enterprise, investing in a diverse 

portfolio, and parri-passu, syndicating or co- lending with other financing partners such as Business Development Bank of 

Canada, Community Futures, Women's Enterprise, Banks, Credit Unions, venture capital and prIvate investors. 

Bad debt impacts SIDlT's abi lity to be sustainable. To diminish the risk of a fi rm failing, sound management and financial 

systems are critical. Operational problems derail a company more often than a product or technology that does not work. 

To this end, SIDIT has also grant fu nded incubation and accelerator centers which provide on-going support to early stage 

technology and related companies. 
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Market Risk 

Market risk is the fair va lue of future cash nows of a financial instrument that will nuctuate due to changes in market prices. 

Fair va lue risk is the potential for loss from an adverse movement in the value of a financial instrument. SIDIT incurs fair value 

risk on its investments held and does not hedge its fair value ri sk. 

SlDlTs investment objectives are as follows: 

Capital preservation: the need to preserve the purchasing power of the capital base, In perpetuity; 

Capital growth: the desire to increase the va lue of the organization's funds; 

Income generation: the need to cover annual cash flows, ongoing expenses and the disbursement targets; 

Project funding: the desire to fund specific cash flow commitments or projects in the future. 

SIDIT manages Its market risk through various means including the following: 

Limiting investment in anyone company; 

Maintaining diversity in the portfolio; 

Investing Into companies with a market capitalization greater than $100 million; (Canadian) and $1 Billion (US) at the 

time of purchase; 

• limiting holdings of fixed income by credit risk ratings and by issuer; 

Refer to SIDIT's By-Law and Policy Manual at www.sidit-bc.ca/about-us/resources/tosee our Investment policy in detail. 

Atthe firm level, Fund Manager Phillips, Hager & North (PH&N) Chief Investment Officer is responsible for setting Investment 

policies for every RBC Global Asset Management (GAM) and PH&N Fund. An investment mandate Is established for every 

fund which places allowable limits on such factors as maximum individual position sizes, maximum sector exposures (both 

absolute and relative to the benchmark), exposure to small capita lization stocks and other illiquid investments, minimum 

credit quality for fixed income instruments, and other factors. The fund managers are responsible for ensuring their portfolios 

remain compliant with their investment mandates, and compliance is also monitored by individuals and systems outside 

the fund management team. 

In addition to complying with the requirements of their investment mandates, the fund manager employs risk management 

processes specific to each asset class. PH&N's fixed income team, through the use of their proprietary bond management 

system ca lled Bondlab, monitors each fixed income portfolio in real time for its exposure to movements in rates, shifts in the 

yield curve, movements in credit spreads, other factors. Bondlabalso considers the correlations between movements in these 

factors, in addition to the direct exposures themselves. Within global equities, the portfolio managers use an Investment 

Grade rating system, under which they rate the quality of every stock under consideration for the portfolio based on such 

characteristics as balance sheet strength, profitability, and quality of management, and apply limits on the proportion of the 

portfolio that can be invested in lesser-quality companies. PH&N's Canadian equity fund managers evaluate companies on 

similar criteria, and also consider where a company's earnings, valuation and stock price fa ll in its likely range over the course 

of a market cycle to help estimate the downside risk for individual stocks. 

Investment losses impact SIDIT's abi lity to be sustainable as well as its ability to fund on-going operations and meet funding 

targets. SIDIT historically, and to date, has the necessary funding and cash flows to meet its objectives. 
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Internal Capacity Risk 
An experienced management and stalfteam allows SIDIT to achieve disbursement targets and maintain operating expenses 

at a low level relative to funding volume. SIDIT maintains a small management and stalf group of 6.75 FTE. Training and 

succession plans are in place to address the limited depth in staffing and potential prolonged absence of any key player, 

including the CEO, in order that entity fund ing processes are not unduly interrupted. The small size of management and 

stalf requires a broad and deep skill set at all levels to be able to conduct the operations of the entity business model. 

SIDIT is enhancing the infrastructure and ongoing staffing requirements necessary to manage and grow its loan and equity 

portfolio. 

Information SystemsfTechnology Risk 
A robust software system is required to report individual project and aggregate portfolio performance over time. This is 

invaluable in increasing the efficiency of SIDIT and enabling strong reporting, given its limited resources. 

In-house software systems are utilized for grant due diligence, Board approval, monitoring, disbursement and 

reporting. This enables SIDIT to manage the fulilifecycle of each grant application, improves the approval processes 

through use of comparative scoring and compliance standards and provides the means to track milestone progress. 

Margill Loan Manager Software is used to manage SIDlT's loan and equity portfolio. Designed specifically for small 

lenders, Margili loan Manager is a PC-based, simple-ta-use, robust and inexpensive loan management solution. The 

program is capable of producing very complete, customized, financial and non-financial reporting. 

Simply Accounting Pro financial software helps SIDIT manage its cash flows by tracking revenues and expenses and 

simplifying the budgeting and forecasting process. Its ability to track cash flows and its audit tra il capabilities further 

increase efficiencies and reporting capabilities. 

A full suite of loan and equity legal templates have been developed and refined. The forms increase consistency 

between applications and reduce implementation and (ustomization costs for our borrowers and investee 

companies. 
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Disaster Recovery Risk 

In the Fall of 2016, SIOIT underwent a review of its computer systems and switched providers to Nerds on Site, including a 

replacement of its server and updated its email and back up storage. In addition, SIOIT implemented stricter guidelines for 

what employees are able to insta ll and download on their computers, as an extra security step in preventing malware and 

vi ruses. 

SIOlT's contingency plan to protect against computerized or paper records loss, computer hacking, and the event of fire or 

earthquake includes the following: 

SIOIT installed QNAP back-up system, which has interchangeable drives that are rotated out on a monthly basis, the 

drives are then kept in a secure location. This back-up system covers the server (operating system included) in its 

entirety and all company, shared, and employee fi les, so in the event of a disaster, the images could be downloaded 

and have the system back up and running again. 

SIOlT's replacement server has hardware redundancies built Into Its storage drives. 

In addition to QNAP, SIOIT backs up its financial and client related files to the cloud via Shadow Craft. These files are 

stored In the cloud in Canada and do not cross international borders, so they are not subject to the Patriots Act. 

SIOlT's email system is run through Microsoft's Office 36S, emails are accessible and backed up through secure log-in 

either through Outlook on computers, or via the Internet. These emails have 'litigation Hold; which means all emails 

are stored in a special Microsoft server that is compliant with IT standards so as to be admissible in court. 

All client fi les are scanned and stored electronica lly and paper copies are stored In fire res istant cabinets. 

All operational computers are monitored by Nerds on Site to detect any malware on a 2417 basis. In addition, Nerds 

on Site also monitors the Server on a 2417 basis. 

Directors and Officers Liabili ty and Omissions Risk 
The Trust mainta ins a $S Mill ion Policy for Oirectors and Officers liabilities and Omiss ions Insurance, as we ll as adequate 

Property and $2 Million General liability Insurance. 

Liqu idity Risk 
liquidity risk is the risk that SIOIT will be unable to fund its obligations as they come due. SIOIT's management oversees 

SIOlT's liquidity risk to ensure that SIOIT has access to enough readily avai lable funds to cover its financia l obligations as they 

come due. 51DI1'5 business requires such capital for operating and funding of development initiatives, grants and education 

awards. 

The assessment of SIOlT's liqUidity position reflects management's estimates, assumptions and judgments pertaining to 

current and prospective trust specific market conditions and the related behavior of its borrowers and investees. SIOIT has 

the necessary cash and cash-flows to meet its current and long term objectives. 
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Strategic Plan Changes 

SIDIT established its long-term goals, in consultation with the SIDIT Board. SIDIT has established processes and extensive 

knowledge of its stakeholders required to set goals that are significant to and inclus ive of its stakeholders. SIDlT's strategic 

plans outline the next three fiscal years of strategic initiatives. The strategic plan ca n be viewed on SIDlT's website 

www.5id it~ bc.ca . 

Changes in Reporting 

In early 201 2, the Office of the AuditorGeneral of Be ca rried out an audit underseclion 11 (6) of the Audito rGeneral Act, which 

empowers the Auditor General to audit an ind ividual or organization concerning a grant received from the government, to 

ensure that any of the grant's terms and conditions have been fulfi lled. The purpose of this audit was to determine whether 

SIDIT was complying with the requirements of its Act, and meeting public accountability reporting standards. 

The Auditor General developed thei r audit criteria based on SIDlT's governing legislation that SIDIT is required to follow and 

on recognized good practices that exist, although are not legislated requirements: 

Include discussion In our public accountability reports about how we are complying with legislated requirements. 

Incorporate the BC Reporting Principles into our annual reports. 

Develop and report annual goals, as well as key performance Indicators that can be used to monitor progress in 

achieving those goals. 

We believe that the recommendations presented by the Auditor General provide useful guidance on how to Improve our 

public accountability reporling practices and create clarity for stakeholders. These recommendations were Incorporated 

into our 2012 Annual Report and will be continuously improved. 



Environmental Scan 

As part of its strategic plan, SIOIT undertook to have an environmental scan conducted every three years. In 2016, the Board 

resolved that it would undertake to have a more a robust report conducted every S years, such as the Socio-Economic 

Impact Assessment Report conducted in 2016 by Lochaven Management Consultantsl Urban Matters. 

The Board determined that as the environmental reports previously conducted by SIOIT were pulled together from 

information that will always be accessible through public websites, that it could forego the cost of this additional report and 

opt for the more specific Economic Impact Report. 

The Socio-Economic Report conducted in 2016 focused specifically on SIDIT and how SIDlT's programs impacted the 

communities of the Southern Interior. 

The methodology used in the Soclo-Economic report allowed Lochaven Management Consultants I Urban Matters to 

objectively answer the following questions: 

1. What social and economic difference(s) or impacts has the Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust made to 

those enterprises, clients and communities to whom it seeks to serve; 

2. How significant and far reaching are these impacts; and, 

3. How consistent are they in terms of SIDlT's mandate, principles, objectives and plans. 

Accordingly, the report was conducted by adding or modifying economic indicators as required and expanding to include 

relevant social indicators. The investigations focused on the acquisition of both qualitative and quantitative impact related 

information; and employed both primary and secondary research. Oy definition, the approach included a process of seoping, 

direct fisca l assessment, surveying of a stratified sample of clientsl stakeholders, and the careful inputting and imputing of 

indirectl induced impacts. 

Results 
The Researchers concluded that even though the ten years leading up to the report had been tumultuous, SIDIT continued 

to have a positive and significant social, economic and employment impact within the Southern Interior. SIOIT broadened 

its programming, in scope and reach and SIDIT has matured as an organization. SIDlT's funding programs have resulted in 

the creation of new enterprises and/or strengthening of others; the creation of new jobs and/or the preservation of others; 

the faci litation of important and innovative community initiatives; the promotion and support of new graduates and a more 

highly educated regional workforce, and increased reg ional growth and prosperity. 

The Researchers went on to state that although there was not an initial baseline, the impacts were positive and substantive. 

These positive impacts serve to emphasize the relevance, credibility and value of 510lT programming. 

The Report can be reviewed in its entirety at https:/!sidlt-bc.ca /a bout-us/resources. 
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Strategic Goals 

SIOlT's objective is to maintain the Trust so that it is susta inable, increasing the va lue of the Trust over time and achieving the 

Trusts' desired ends within available means. The Board has established a core strategy, supported by five strategic goals and 

defined performance targets with metrics that track progress and measure each goal's achievement. 

Core Strategy 
Identify and support community development projects and regionally based commercial ventures that match the 

objectives of the Trust and demonstrate sustainability. 

Maintain the Trust so that it is financially sustainable, providing continual support for economic initiatives for the 

Southern Interior and increase the social and economic Impact of the Trust over time. 

Supporting each of SIOlT's five strategic goals are strategies, performance targets and metrics that track progress and 

measure goal achievement 

Strategic Goals 
Goal 1 : Enhance the Southern Interior economy by promoting greater economic growth, resiliency and diversification. 

Goal 2: Preserve existing jobs, stimulate new employment and address skill shortages in the Southern Interior reg ion. 

Goal 3: Attract new capital to the Southern Interior region to drive incremental economic development activities. 

Goal 4: Increase the value of the investment pool. thereby increas ing opportunities to support regionally strategic 

investments in the Southern Interio r. 

Goal S: Create and sustain public awareness of and support for SIOlT's purpose, goals, achievements and successes with a 

focus on partnership development, collaboration and extending rural reach. 

Perfo rmance Targets and Metrics 
Performance targets and metrics for each strategic goal assist SIOIT and its stakeholders to measure and assess SIOlT's 

progress, impact and results. Metrics are selected on the following criteria: 

Connection to our goals - our progress in achieving desired outcomes and through them, our mission, vision and mandate. 

longevity - track impact over time; identify trends and provide information for performance improvement. 

Measurable - metrics for which we can co llect relevant, accurate data in a timely and affordable manner in support of 

SIOIT's operational and strategic priorities. 

Specific metrics focus on activities, behaviors, operational processes and outcomes critical to the delivery of an efficient, 

effective funding system and consistent with SIOlT's Vision, Mission and Guiding Principles. 

Metri cs are evaluated annually to ensure they have integrity and are meaningful measurements of performance achievement, 

outcomes and impact. This results in ongoing refinement of metrics and data collection methods. 

Overall, our performance metrics track and measure our strategy execution and goal achievement. 
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GOAL 1 ENHANCE THE SOUTHERN INTERIOR ECONOMY BY PROMOTING GREATER 
ECONOMIC GROWTH, RESILIENCY AND DIVERSIFICATION. 

Strategies 
1. Positively impact each region in the Southern Interior through strategic investments in communities, effective 

partnerships and by focusing on primary target industries. 

PERFORMANCE TARG ETS AND METRICS: 

a) Focus on primary targeted industries measured as cumulative S invested per sector. 

b) Subject to proponent demand, positive ly impact the economy by investing in each region measured as cumulative 

number and $ invested per capita by sub-region. 

c) Achieve a minimum 2 times leverage of SIDIT $ funding, measured as the percentage of SIDIT dollars committed vs 

other investment and project financing approved and committed. 

2. Invest in existing enterprises that are seeking to create diversification in their own business by introducing new products; 

targeting new markets; creating diversification through other means; ensuring successful business transition; or 

succession to the next generation. 

PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND METRICS: 

a) Approve minimum annual investments of $7 Million in fiscal 201 7 

b) Achieve cumulative investments of $68 Million by 2020. 

c) Invest in innovation and entrepreneurship and projects that assist individuals to create or expand businesses, develop 

innovative products, enhance services and uti lize technologies. 

PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND METRICS: 

a) Co-invest in Early Stage Seed Funds aligned with SIDIT priorities and eligibility criteria. 

b) Achieve cumulative investment of $500,000 commencing fiscal 2017. 

c) Achieve a minimum of4 times leverage of SIOIT $ invested. 

d) Measure and report impact and outcomes based on investment partners' annual investee reports. 

3. Accelerate client success by providing companies with business mentoring on a cost-shared basis: 

PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND METRICS: 

a) Fiscal 2017- proVide 20 companies with SIOIT mentoring support services on a cost-shared basis. 
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Measurement 
The following reflects cumulative disbursed fund ing by region on a per capita basis. 

Results 
Regional impact will be evaluated as dollars per capita/per sub region and is provided for informational purposes only. 

Grant Funding by Region and per Capita: 
Regions 2017 Grants Cumulative Population $ per capita 
Central Okanagan $75,000 $915,478 194,882 $4.70 
Columbia Shuswap-TO $25,000 $225,000 35,739 $6.30 
Fraser Valley $0 $25,000 7,096 $3.52 
North.Okanagan 1 $3.~00 $3~8,022 84,35'4 $4.13 

Okanagan Similkameen $25,000 $4~6,284 83,022 $5.74 

Thompson Niaola $150,000 $1.[49,666 132,663 $8.6'1 
537,756 

Columbia Shuswap-K $25,000 $175,000 15,001 $11.67 
Kootenay Boundary $99,011 $906,726 31,441 $28.83 
Central Kootenay $50,000 $611,088 59,517 $10.27 
East Kootenay $24,300 $649,106 60,439 $10.75 

~66,404 

Leverage 9.38 to 1 $476,511 $5,481,970 704,160 



Loan Funding Mandates by Region and per Capita 

Regions 2017 Cumulative 
Central Okanagan $2,775,000 $25,140,822 
Columbia Shuswap-TO $735,934 
Fraser Va lley $500,000 

North Okanagan $.75,000 $4,315,000 
Okanagan 5imilkameen $190,000 $4,385,674 
Thompson Nicola $750,000 $1,558,801 

Columbia Shuswap-K 
K00tenay Boundary 

Central Kootenay 
East Kootena¥ 

Leverage 2.22 to 1 

Education by Regions 

$3,790,000 $36,696,231 

Popu lation $ per capita 

194,882 $129.01 

35,739 $20.59 

7,096 $70.46 

84,354 $51.86 

83,On $52.83 

132,663 $11.75 

537,756 $68.24 

15,00'1. $0.00 

31,447 $116.80 
$5.04 

Tolal Population $ per capi.ta 
-,:hompson.Qk'anaga n ..... ,.,...."""' ..... _~, $4;Q2·271.sQ,.,,i ..... _ ... 537;7-56~~-$M8~ ... D .... ~,,>=-

Columbia Kootenay $1,665,500 166,404 $10.01 

$5,688,250 704,160 $8.08 

Total Funding Per Region and Per Capita 
Regions Total Population $ per capita 
Cent ral Okanagan $27,553,298 194,882 $141.38 
Columbia Shuswap-TO $1,230,987 35,739 $34.44 
Fraser Va lley $569,708 7,096 $80.29 
North Okanagan $5,331,489 84,354 $63.20 
Okanagan 5imil kamee n $5,466,717 83,022 $65.85 
Thompson Nicola $3,720,733 132,663 $28.05 

$43,872,931 537,756 $81.59 
Columbia Shuswap-K $319,011 15,001 $21.27 
Kootenay Bou ndary $4,889,866 31,447 $155.50 
Centra l Kootenay $1,518,240 59,517 $25.51 
East Kootenay $3,890,966 60,439 $64.38 

$10,618,084 166,404 $63.81 

$54,491,015 
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Discussion 
From its original $50 million government allocation, 

SIDIT has invested $43 million into business ventures in 

the Southern Interior as well as funded $11 million in 

nome payable grants and education award s. $24 million 

in principal and interest has been repaid as at the end of 

fiscal 2017. It is anticipated that this level of funding wi ll 

help communities respond to challenges and opportunities 

in the near term while preserving a significant portion of 

the funds to ensure that the Trust has resources ava ilable 

to respond to future challenges and opportunities as they 

evolve. At the October 2014 strategic planning session, 

the SIDIT Board of Directors determined to increase loan 

and equity Investments and red uce market investments 

incrementally. 

$30 million In surplus funds are invested in liquid and 

market securities to provide for operating capital and create 

a reserve for future funding and investment opportunities. 

This level of funding assists communities in responding 

to challenges and opportunities in the near term, while 

preserving a significant portion of the funds to ensure 

that the Trust has resources available to respond to future 

challenges and opportunities as they evolve. 

The primary objective for the Trust is to support economic 

development initiative opportunities based on project merit 

within the Southern Interior irrespective of geographic 

considerations. In line with the Trust's Act and its mandate, 

the Trust encourages submissions from throughout the 

Southern Interior. 

Grant funding is proponent driven and while the Trust 

strives, to the best extent possible, that all regions of the 

Southern Interior have fa ir and eq uitable access to the 

Trust's funds, it does not have control over the resu lts of 

distribution of funding. 

The Trust determines business enterprise risk based on 

a carefu l study of the business plan, past performance of 

the business enterprise, if applicable, and management 

capacity of the principals in order to gain a sufficient level 

of comfort that future cash flow and equity targets will be 

achieved. 

Within the context of the SIDIT Act, the Trust balances the 

level of risk that is present, with the community economic 

benefits that are being created. However, SIOIT wi ll always 

satisfy itself that the potential ofthedeal presented is sound 

and prudent in order to protect the future of the fund. 

As part of our mandate, we provide funding for early stage 

ventures which are generally seen to be in a "pre bankable" 

phase due to a lack of tangible security, history or sufficient 

cash flow. The development initiative investments are 

considered to be risky and accordingly demand higher 

rates of return than more established companies would be 

able to negotiate. 

We have the option to convert a number of development 

Initiative loans into equity of the business recipient. Should 

the recipient com panies be successful, these conversion 

options may have a material fair va lue over and above 

the value of the associated loan. We consider there is no 

material va lue in any of the conversion options at present, 

given that the recipient companies are in early to growth 

stage of the business venture. 

While the Trust completes due diligence procedures prior 

to any investment being funded, economic conditions 

have impacted the credit quality of many entities due to 

increased uncerta inty in cash flows. We made the first 

development initiative investment in March 31, 2008 fiscal 

year. As the recipient companies are now further into the 

lifecycle of an early stage enterprise, it has become evident 

that certain investments are unli kely to be recovered. 

A provision for losses is recorded when we no longer have 

reasonable assurance of timely collection of the full amount 

of principal and interest. 
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Accelerate Okanagan (AO) 
Okanagan Valley - Q4 FYTD (for the 12 months ended March 31, 2017) 

Partner Information Company Information Graduate Information 

Program Launch: ACTIVE ACTIVE COMPANIES IN CHURN AVERAGE RANGE OF 

2011 COMPANIES PROGRAM FOR 12+ RATE' MONTHS MONTHS IN 
MONTHS IN PROGRAM PROGRAM 

BCIC Funding In FY 2016/17 1: 

$350,000 40 40% 43% 12 1 - 39 
Tolal Current EIRs: 

9 
Entrepreneurs Trained2: 

148 
Average Client Capacity 
Achieved J: 

85% 21 of2. 
Seats FUled 

' Typicaiy it takes companies e number Dr years to prodLICB significant results 

40 Active 

Software (Enterprise Software I SaaS) 

life ScIences / Medical Devices 

Other (e.g, Agrifoods)J 

Industrial Technology I Heavy Industry 

Services 

Telecom / IJIIireJess 

Results from 35 of 40 Active Companies5 (13% of BCAN) 

Jobs Created 

51 % of companies created Jobs 

1 A Jobs crealed per company 

Investment AttractedG 

Revenues G~nerated 

5% of BCAN Total 
66% of companies generated Revenue 

$58K in Revenue generated per company 

Government Fund ing Attracted 

• $3 .5M~43.5M $1.2M in 4 I $190KI 11.2M ~in Q4 
BlI/. of BCA N Total 2% of BCAN Total 

77% of companies attraclGcllnveslmenl 20% of companies attracted Government Funding 

Top Success Stories 

RevUp cl ient Data Nerds graduated from the Boulder Techslars program. 
Two Accelerate Okanagan companies expanded internationally (AquaAir 247 from VAP and Data Nerds from RevUP) 

I .I 
Two Hat Security (Community Sift - RevUP) and Milacs htlp:/Ibit.1y/2pOQ4er. 

'Bele conlribvled an addiiOonal $50,000 toward RevUP. 
lTotal entrepreneurs trained in the program 10 dale by EIRs. 
lAverage Client Capacity Achieved Is based on capacity averaged over 12 points in FY 2015117: the 15111 of eacl1 month. Seats filled are rounded. 
' Churn rate calculated for FY 20 16117. 
5aCIC does not inetude results from companies that e~iled In Ihe firsl month or joined in the lasl month of the quarter. 
'Inves tment refers to new venture capital. angel, strategic, friends & family and founde r investments attracted. 

ID 2012-2017 BC Innovation Council 
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Kamloops Innovation (KI) 
Central Interior - Q4 FYTD (for the 12 months ended March 31, 2017) 

Partner Information Company Information Graduat. Information 

Program Launch: 

201 2 
BCIC Funding in FY 2016/17 : 

$150,000 
Total Current EIRs: 

1 
Entrepreneurs Trained' : 

56 
Average Client Capacity 
Achievecf2: 
740;' .0f12 

o Seats Filled 

ACTIVE ACTIVE COMPANIES IN CHURN AVERAGE RANGE OF 

COMPANIES PROGRAM FOR 12+ RATEJ MONTHS MONTHS IN 
MONTHS IN PROGRAM PROGRAM 

13 69% 31 % 14.7 2 - 38 
' 'YYpleely It lakes companies a number of yea($ to produce significant rllulls 

13 Active 

Software (Enterprise Software I SaaS) 

Ufe Sciences I Medical Oevlces 

Other (e.g. Agrifoods) 

Industrial Technology I Heavy Induslry 

Telecom I Wireless 

Results from 11 of 13 Active Companies4 (4% of BCAN) 

Jobs Created 

27% of companies created Jobs 

3.7 Jobs created per company 

Investment Attracted6 

2.7M/$43.5M 
6% 01 BCAN Total 

$533K in 0 4 

73% of companies attracted Investment 

Top Success Stories 

Revenues Generated 

64% of companies generated Revenue 

$562K in Revenue generated per company 

Government Funding Attracted 

I 2I:t Ki$11.2M $0 in 0 4 
2% of BCAN Tolal 

45°k of companies attracted Government Funding 

lightship Works received a BCIP Grant of $500K and was listed as an Information and Communications Technology 
"Emerging Rocker company, expected to see significant growth or market reach in 2017. 
Dalabox signed two new business deals as a direct result of presenting and participating in the Prince George and 
Castlegar Regionallnnovalion Opportunities (RIO) events. 
Kamloops Innovation was chosen to host the 2017 Stertup Canada Awards on September 15, 2017. This will be the 
first time the awards will be held outside of Vancouver. 

'Tolalllnlrllpreneurs trained in Ihe program 10 dalll by EIRs. 
IAvllragll C~ant Capacity Achieved Is based on capacity aVlraged oVllr 12 points In FY 2016117: the 15'" of each month. Seats fiMed ere rounded. 
lChurn rate calculated lor FY 2016117. 
'6C1C dollS not incLde resuHs from companies that e~ited in the flr.t month or joined In thetasl month of the quarter. 
'lflVestmeJl1 refers to new ~enlurll capital. angel, ,Iret., lfiends & family and founder invnlmants attracted. 

02012·2017 Be Innovation CouncU 8 
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Kootenay Association for Science and Technology (KAST) 
West Kootenays - Q4 FYTD (for the 12 months ended March 31, 2017) 

Partner Information Company Information Graduate Information 

Program Launch: 

2013 
ACTIVE 

COMPANIES 

ACTIVE COMPANIES IN 
PROGRAM FOR 12+ 

MONTHS 

CHURN 
RATE] 

AVERAGE 
MONTHS 

IN PROGRAM 

RANGE OF 
MONTHS IN 
PROGRAM 

BCIC Funding in FY 2016f17: 

$170,000 14 57% 50% 14.7 3 - 38 
Total Current E1Rs; 'Typically" lakes companies a number of years 10 proouca significant re sults 

5 
Entrepreneurs Trained' ; 

41 
Average Client Capacity 
Achleved2: 

100% BofB 
Seats Filled 

14 Active 

Software (Enterprise Software f SaaS) 1lllilliijlllill;r 
Life Sciences I Medical Devices 

Other (e.g. Agrifoods) 

industrial Technology I Heavy Industry 

Telecom I Wireless 

, 
Results from 13 of 14 Active Companies4 (4% of BCAN) 

Jobs Created 

<1% of BCAN Total 

a°,'., of companies created Jobs 

Investment Attracted5 

Revenues Generated 

4G% of c,?nlpanies generated Revenue 

$346K in Revenue generated per company 

$0 in Q4 

Government Funding Att;;;r.;;a.;;ct;.;e;;;d;..,. __ _ 

I :~.~!..l~-'I'..!.~!'..I.!; 
1% of BCAN Total 

31 % of compa nies attracted Government Funding 

Top Success Stories 

Cronometer, a new YAP client, is being featured in a publication outl ining the benefits of tracking individual eating 
records, health records and overall fitness. Since enroll ing in the YAP , this cl ient has consistently seen sales of the 
app triple each month. 

lTota t e~ lfe pre~eur5 tral~ed i~ the program to date by EIRs. 
2Average Client Capacity Achieved is based on capacity averaged over 12 points in FY 20161 17: the 15110 of each mo~th . Seats tiDed ere rour.ded. 
3(:hurn rate calculated for FY 2016117. 
'BCIC does ~ o l i~clude resuns irom companies that exited in the first month or joi~ed in the las t month of the quarter. 
Sinvestment refers to new venture capital. II flgel. strategk;. frie~ds & famity and Iour.der iflvestme~ts anrec ted. 

Cl201 2-2017 BC tnnovation Council 
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Discussion 

In today's economic climate, it is increasingly important for British Columbia to be competitively positioned in the global 

knowledge economy. A Crown Agency of the BC Government, the BC Innovation Council (BClC) is Be's lead agency for 

promoting and accelerating technology commercialization. BClC provides funding to and collaborates with organizations 

across the province to create and deliver programs and support key industry initiatives that help BCIC meet its mission 

to strengthen British Columbia's economy by accelerating the growth of BC ventures through the support of entrepreneurs and 

technology companies. 

The Venture Acceleration Program (www.bcacceleration.ca) drives economic development by training entrepreneurs to 

start and grow a company, thereby driving job creation in British Columbia. It accelerates the process of defining a proven 

business model and increases the like lihood of success through: 

• A structured approach to growing a company, the Venture Growth Model. that integrates concepts and advice from 

global thought leaders such as Geoffrey Moore, Steve Blank and Alex Osterwalder. 

• Ongoing one-on-one coaching from experienced Executives in Residence (EiRs) and access to their networks. This may 

include introductions to investment sources, strategiC partners, and early adopter customers. 

• Valuable networking opportunities. 

Through the delivery of an intense skills training experience akin to an apprenticeship in technology entrepreneurship 

and commercialization, the goal of the program is to develop entrepreneurial talent, drive economic development and job 

creation in the province of BC 

BCIC acknowledges that Venture Acceleration Program companies often receive support, funding and resources from a 

number of sources in Be's technology ecosystem, all of which contribute to their success. These resources include the National 

Research Coundl of Canada's Industrial Research Assistance Program (NRC-IRAP), the Southern Interior Development 

Ipltlative Trust, the Northern Develo~ment Initiative Trust and Western Econo." [DIversification Canada. 



GOAL 2 PRESERVE EXISTING JOBS AND STIMULATE NEW EMPLOYMENT IN THE 
SOUTHERN INTERIOR REGION. 

Strateg ies 

1, Invest in new and existing commercial enterprises that will use the infusion of capital to preserve jobs and/or create new 

jobs through: 

PER f ORMANCE TARGETS AND METRICS : 

aJ Create or preserve 3,000 jobs by 2020 at an annual rate of 250 jobs. 

b) Measure annual and cumulative impact on job creation and retention as reported by existing and new SIDIT clients 

in annual reviews and by grant funds recipients in annual impact reports to SIDIT. 

cJ Report impact by industry sector. 

2. Invest a percentage ofthe income ofthe Fund into educational programs and internships focused on trades, technology 

and academic programs that address skill shortages and enhance economic growth in the region. 

PER f ORMANCE TA RGETS AND METRI CS: 

aJ Achieve cumulative investments of $6.2 million by 2020. 

bJ Approve annual investmentof$2S0,000 in programs and internships, allocated among SlOWs partners on the basis of 

number of students supported, alignment with SIDIT priority industries, impacts on employment and skill shortages. 

e) Ensure 510lT internship contributions are matched by recipient organizations. 

dJ Measure impact through recipient annual performance reporting of program outcomes including: benefits to 51DIT 

priority target industri es and employment; alignment with regional skill shortages; number of students supported 

and recipient success stori es. 

eJ Track student graduation rates. 

Measurement 

Jobs reported are based on proponent estimates on direct employment to be created or preserved. Wages expenses 

are ve rified by compa rison to financial statements or proponent reporting. Financial statements proVided by business 

proponents are prepared, at a minimum, on a Review Engagement Basis. 
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Results 

Annual Job Creation 
800 

700 

600 

500 

400 

300 

200 

100 

0 
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

2017 Job Created 

Tourism 
I 

29 I L . 

Small Business 226 

Olympic Opportunites 4 

Forestry 3 

Energy • 10 

148 

• 7 I 

Economic Development 

Agriculture 

o 50 100 150 200 250 
,---.~~-----.----

Number of Students Receiving SIOIT Grants 

2009 2010 20 11 2012 20 13 201 4 2015 2016 2017 Total 
College of the Rockies 142 183 187 107 106 100 123 84 57 1,089 

Selkirk College 284 362 450 74 58 44 38 36 64 1,410 

Thompson Rivers University 493 558 590 58 65 58 62 81 SO 2,015 

Okanagan (allege 582 593 468 102 SO SO SO 75 SO 2,020 

UBCO a 0 0 29 SO SO 65 65 40 299 

UBCO~Medica l 0 0 0 10 10 10 5 5 5 45 

BCI( 0 6 9 11 10 10 5 1 0 52 

1,501 1,702 1,704 391 349 322 348 347 266 6,930 
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Discussion 

JOB CREATION 

As previously noted in this report, the Trust conducted a Socio-Economic Report in 2016, which focused specifically on the 

Trust and how the Trust's programs impacted the communities olthe Southern Interior. The Researchers concluded that even 

though the ten yea rs leading up to the report had been tumultuous, the Trust continued to have a positive and significant 

social, economic and employment impact within the Southern Interior. The researchers went on to state although there was 

not an initial base line, the impacts were positive and substantive. These positive impacts serve to emphasize the relevance, 

credibility and value of SIDIT programming. 

The Report can be reviewed in its entirety on our website at: https:/Isidit·bc,ca/about-us/resources 

LABOUR FORECAST 

A labour market outlook looks at trends that are anticipated in the future labour market. According to Be's 2025 Labour 

Market Outlook, 14 percent of workers in BC are in the Southern Interior, and they expect a total of 134,700 job openings in 

the Southern interior Region by 2025. Three in ten openings are due to economic growth and the rest are to replace retired 

workers. Employment demand in the region is forecast to increase each year by 1.1 percent on average, the same rate as the 

provincial average. 

Be's 2025 Labour Market Outlook can be viewed at: 

hit ps:/Iwww.workbc.ca/getm ed i a/OOde 3 b 1 5 -0 5 5 1-4f7 0-ge6 b-23 ffb6c9cb86/La bo u r M a rketO utloo k .as px 

EDUCATiONAL SUPPORT 

The Trust engages with six post-secondary institutions operating in the Southern Interior as delivery partners for the Tru st's 

investment in education. The participating institutions: College of the Rockies; Selkirk College; Okanagan College; University 

of British Columbia Okanagan; Thompson Rivers University; and Nicola Va lley institute ofTechnology, deliver programs and 

manage awa rds for trades, technology and applied sciences. Awards are based on financial need and range in size from 

$500 to $2,500 per student recipient. 
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GOAL 3 ATTRACT NEW CAPITAL TO THE SOUTHERN INTERIOR REGION TO DRIVE 
INCREMENTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES. 

Strategies 
1. Attract capital into the region and contribute to the economic sustainability of the community by providing grants 

supporting community economic initiatives. 

PERFORMANCE TARGETS ANO METRICS: 

a) Achieve cumulative investments of $7 Million in support of community economic Initiatives by 2020. 

b) Advance a minimum of $500,000 annually in grants to community economic initiatives with a priority on projects 

that enhance access to technology and economic opportunities in smaller and rural communities. 

c) Measure Impact through annual recipient and partner reporting on immediate and ongoing project outcomes. 

2. Through leverage and partnerships, achieve a multiplier effect through SIOIT loans, equity investments and grants. 

PERFORM ANCE TARG ETS ANO METRICS: 

a) Achieve. minimum 4:1 leverage of SlOWs grant funding defined as an investment of $4 from sources unrelated to 

SIOIT for every $1 invested by SIOIT as verified by third party review of project funding. 

b) Achieve minimum 2:1 leverage of SIOlT's loan and equity investments defined as investment of $2 from other sources 

(I.e. private equity/ institutional investors/conventional and development lenders) for every $ invested by SIOIT. 

c) At proponent application and annual review, track project financing from other sources. Reportannualand cumulative 

results. 

d) Leverage partnerships through collaboration on best practices and joint business and community economic 

development initiatives. 

e) Track and report annually on partnership activities and impact. 

f) Track and report annually on data collected on grants. 

Res ul ts 
$451,511 has been funded in support of community economic initiatives in 201 7 and cumulatively $5.5 million has been 

funded as at fiscal year-end 201 7. This represents 100% of our cumulative target. Our leverage to date is 9:38 to 1. Our 

investments of $48 million into loans and eqUity investments has attracted an additional $155 million into the reg ion 

representing leverage of 2:22 for every $1 invested by 5101T. 
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Funding partners for community economic initiatives 

include the following: 

Provincial Government 

Social Planning and Research Council 

BC 1S0 Celebrations Fund 

BC Innovation Council 

BC Lottery Foundation 

Jobs Opportunities Program 

Ministry of Aboriginal Relations and Reconciliation 

Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource 

Operations 

Ministry of Jobs, Tourism & Skills Training 

Ministry of Community, Sports and Cultural 

Development 

Ministry ofTransportation & Infrastructure 

Southern Interior Beetle Action Coalition 

Rural Economic Diversification 

Rural Dividend Fund 

Federal Government 

• Business Development Bank of Canada 

• Farm Credit Corporation 

• Community Futures Development Corporations 

• Women's Enterprise 

Heritage Legacy Fund 

P3 Canada 

Service Canada - Youth Employment Strategy 

Discussion 

We define an economically sustainable community as a 

place where: 

• There is a high quality of living that attracts people to 

the community and keeps them there; 

• There is ample economic diversity and opportunity. 

To help strengthen and build sustainable communities, we 

invest in initiatives that: 

Have regional economic impact; 

Support the creation, preservation or enhancement of 

ernployment; 

Western Economic Diversification 

Chambers of Commerce 

Credit Unions and Credit Union Foundations 

First Nations Groups 

Colleges, Universities, and other Education Facilities 

Union of BC Municipal Governments 

Not-far-Profit Organizations, Foundations, and 

Cooperatives 

Trusts 

Funding partners for business loans and equity investment 

initiatives include the following: 

Atrium Ventures VCC Inc. 

Business Development Bank of Canada; 

Farm Credit Corporation 

Community Futures Development Corporations; 

Women's Enterprise; 

Banks; 

• Credit Unions; 

• Venture Capital Corporations; 

• Proponent equity; 

• Angel investors; 

National Research Council Canada - Industrial Research 

Assistance Program; 

Scientific Research and Experimental Development­

Federal Tax Incentive Program. 

• Support economic diversification and sustainability 

within Southern Interior communities; 

• Tap into and take advantage of the expertise of people 

who live in the Southern Interior; 

• Bu ild on the region's tourism sector; 

Capitalize on the innovation and entrepreneurship of 

Southern Interior communities and businesses; 

Build on the industrial strength of the Southern Interior. 
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Grant Program 
The Grant Program provides non-repayable funding for municipalities, regional districts, First Nations, registered non-profit 

societies, institutions, and industry associations to support regionally strategic investments in economic development 

projects that will have long-lasting and measurable regional benefits for the Southern Interior. 

Projects that may be ineligible under the Trust's guidelines, will be considered if they are from communities with a population 

of under 25,000, but projects still need to demonstrate measurable economic impact. In addition, multi-year funding may 

be considered for initiatives or activit ies that take longer than one year to fully develop, or to achieve or document results 

that are meaningful or build sustainability. 

All projects must be consistent with the Act, vision and mission olthe Trust and preference is given to initiati ves with regional 

benefits. Benefits are measured by increased tax base, new job creation, incremental revenue generation and economic 

diversification. 

Thompson Okanagan Grants 
• Accelerate Okanagan (AO) / BCIC 

Arts Council of the North Okanagan 

Canadian Home Builders Association 

Central Okanagan Community Futures 

Central Okanagan Foundation 

Community Dental Access Centre Society 

Community Futures of North Okanagan 

Community Futures Okanagan Simllkameen 

Gold Country Communities Society - 2 grants 

Grindrod Recreation Association 

Hope Business and Development Society 

Kamloops Farm Fresh Processing Initiative 

Kamloops Innovation Centre (KIC) / BCIC 

Kelowna Habitat for Humanity Society 

Kelowna Innovation Society 

Kettle Va lley Railway Society 

Lake Country Food Assistance Society 

Loose Bay Campground Society 

Lower North Thompson Community Forest Society 

Myra Canyon Trestle Restoration Society 

Nicola Va lley Community Theatre Society 

NK'Mip Desert Heritage Society 

North Shuswap Hea lth Centre Society 

North Thompson Fa ll Fair & Rodeo Association - 2 grants 

O'Keefe Ranch & Interior Heritage Society 

Okanagan Car Share Co-Op 

Okanagan Research & Innovation Centre - 2 grants 

Okanagan Similkameen Film Commission Society 

Pentlcton Centre for Exceptional Learning Society 

Princeton, Town of - 2 grants 

Regional District of North Okanagan - 2 grants 

Regional District of Okanagan Similkameen 

Revelstoke Nordic Ski Club 

S5. Sicamous Marine Heritage Society 

Salmon Arm Folk Music Society 

Salmon Arm Museum and Heritage Association 

Shuswap Hut & Trail All iance Society 

Sounds of Light Multicultural Society 

Sun Peaks Education Society 

Sun Peaks Health Association 

Sun Peaks Mounta in Resort Municipality 

Thompson Nicola Regional District - 2 grants 

Thompson Okanagan Tourism Association 

Thompson Rivers Univers ity - 2 grants 

University of British Columbia Okanagan 

Venture Kamloops Business Development Society 

Ye llowhead Community Services Society 
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Columbia Kootenay Grants 
• BDC -Small Business Productivity Project 

• Black Jack Cross Country Ski Club Society - 2 grants 

• British Columbia Community Forest Association 

• Castlegar, City of 

• CFDC of Greater Trail 

• Christina Lake Chamber of Commerce 

• Cranbrook & District Community Foundation 

• Creston & District Community Resource Centre Society 

Fernie Chamber of Commerce 

• Fly YXC Alliance Society - 2 grants 

• Friends of Fort Steele Society 

• Golden Cycling Club 

• Golden Nordic Ski Club Society - 2 grants 

• Grand Forks and Boundary Regional Agricultural 

Society 

• Grand Forks, CIty of 

• Harrop-Procter Community Co-op 

• Kaslo, Village of 

• Kimberley, City of - 2 grants 

• Kootenay Aboriginal Business Advocates Society 

• Kootenay Association for Science (KASTl / BClC 

• Kootenay Employment Services Society - 2 grants 

• Kootenay Region Association for Community Living -

4 grants 

• Kootenay Rockies Innovation Council (KRIC) / BCIC 

• Little Lakers Learning Centre Society 

• Nakusp Centennial Golf Club 

• Nakusp, Village of 

• Nelson Civic Theatre Society 

• Nelson, City of 

• Phoenix Foundation of the Boundary Communities 

• Red Mountain Academies Association 

• Rossland. City of 

• Selki rk College 

• Trail, CIty of- 2 grants 

• Village of Canal Flats - 2 grants 

• West Kootenay Herb Growers Cooperative 

• Windermere District Farmers'lnstitute and livestock 

Association 



GOAL 4 INCREASE THE VALUE OF THE INVESTMENT POOL, THEREBY INCREASING 
OPPORTUNITIES TO SUPPORT REGIONALLY STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS IN 
THE SOUTHERN INTERIOR. 

Strategies 
1. Prudently manage SlOWs credit investment ri sk by establishing and fo llowing clear guidelines for assessing lending and 

investment opportunities and by setting maximum limits of funding at various stages of development and categories 

of risk. Provide ongoing business mentoring and monitoring to investee companies to enhance their performance and 

success. 

PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND METRICS: 

a) Balance Investment of the fund pool in companies at various stages of development by limiting exposure to the 

following percentages: 5% at seed stage, 15% early stage, 50% growth stage, 30% mature stage. 

b) Limit loan size by stage of developmentto: $200,000 seed stage, $500,000 early stage, $1,000,000 growth, expansion 

or mature stage. 

c) Monitor the fund pool risk for balanced investment in specific categori es of risk based on loan purpose, proponent's 

Industry sector and operational performance. 

d) Proactively manage portfolio risk by downgrading risk at the time of material adverse changes, and by appropriate 

provision for losses. 

2. Achieve a return on market investment portfolio (ROO at or above industry benchmarks. Prudently manage SlOWs 

market investment risk by establishing and following investment policy gUidelines that set out investment risk tolerance 

and portfolio structure. Increase the va lue of the trust over time. 

PERFORMAN CE TARGETS AND METRICS: 

a) Engage high-quality investment management professionals to manage the market investment portfol io and achieve 

target rates of return on investment, established by SlOWs Board of Directors and specified in SIOl1's investment 

policy and bylaws. 

b) Annually establish target return on investment. 

c) Report and manage investments on the basis of investment type and risk, bench marked against industry performance 

for each category of investment as provided by the professional investment manager. 

d) Report on actual net return achieved vs target ROI and vs industry benchmark performance for each category of 

investment, as well as the overa ll portfolio. 
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Loans 
Performance Targets 
Increase the value of the Trust over time. 

PERFORMANCE METR ICS: 

Balanced Portfolio Risk Mix: 

Achieve and sustain a balanced risk mix in the loan and investment portfolio, based on investee's stage of business 

development, loan/ investment purpose, life cycle and operational performance. 

Prudent Portfolio Management: 

» Pricing loans and equity investments appropriately based on risk, with higher returns priced Into higher risk 

transactions. 

» Proactively manage and report on portfolio risk, including downgrading of risk at the time of material adverse 

changes, and provision for losses. 

» Quarterly and annually report on lending and equity investment portfolio returns on investment (ROil, itemized 

by category of risk and with returns calculated to include loans and equity investments written off and provisions 

for losses. 

» Include updated exit strategies in reports on loan and equity investments. 

The Loan/Investment Business stages are defined as: 

Seed Capita l Stage: Companies althe start-up stage have an idea that is feasible and a cred ible business model fordelivering 

their product, service or technology to an attractive target market, although may not yet have begun to generate revenues. 

SIDIT can provide financing to help the business develop a viable product from their technology, build prototypes for testing 

and develop marketing and sales plans for product launch. 

Early Stage: Companies at the early stage have a corporate structure in place and have successfully market tested their 

products or services. SIDIT can provide financing to help these ventures begin commercial production and market ing. 

Growth/Expansion Stages: Companies at this stage are established businesses with well-defined products and markets, 

tangible assets used in providing services, an established management team, and a track record of revenue and positive 

trending profit generation. Funding at this stage can be provided to help grow or expand operations, enter new markets, 

finance an acquisition, and facilitate a change in control or to execute a turnaround strategy. 

later/Mature Stages: We provide financing to later stage / mature companies to help grow existing operations, improve 

performance or protect employment through an injection of capital and appropriate management support. 
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TARGET INVESTMENT FUND ALLOCATION AND LEVERAGE 

Stage of Business II Maximum $ Invested Target leverage SIDJT/Other Target Fund Allocation· 

Seed Capital $200,000 1:1 
~- - -- - ------ ----- --
Early-stage Capital $500,000 1:1 

~ - -
Growth I Expansion Capital $1,000,000 2:1 

- - -- ---- - i - - ~ -~-- f- - -
Later / Mature Capital $1,000,000 4:1 

·va/Uf! Is bosed on current bolances and monitored on ar least an annual basis 

CURRENT FUND ALLOCATION 

" 
, 

" It. '! It t~' ) lHILl,'~"lt· •. , li~')Lt 

Start Up Phase 

Early Stage 

Growth / Expansion Stages -
later / Mature Stages 

OPERATING RESULTS 

Revenue from development initiatives and other 

Provision fo r development initiative losses 

Operating expenses before amortization, interest & 
taxes 

Operating expenses % of revenue 

Net earnings 

Financial analysis 

Return on development initiatives 

Development initiatives 

Return on investments 

5% 

15'16 

50% 

30% 

. , ,Ij '~'al' tUl:·,.: [;" '11 , , 
$1,931,862.5 1 6% 

$7,696,614.16 22% 

$15,506,738.84 45% 

$8,992,601.52 26% 

$34,127,817.03 100% 

2,49t 2,Ot6 23.56% l' 2,352 

2,613 1,206 11 6.67% l' 4,339 

1,308 1,120 16.79% l' 838 

52.51% 55.56% (5.49)% oil 35.63% 

46 166 {72.29)'16 oil 897 

(0.77)% 

20,446 

8.13% 

4.14% {118.60)'16 oil I (1 2.35)% 

20,580 (0.65)% oil 18.439 

4.69% 73.35% l' t6.30% 
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15'16 

50% 

30% 

(14.29)% oil 

(72.21)% oil 

33.65% l' 

55.94% 1-

{81.49)'16 oil 

1JJ.52'16 l' 

11.61% l' 

(71.23)% oil 



Discussion 

SIDlT's loan and equity portfolio is dynamic and can fluctuate significantly with new debt and debt re payment. Changes 

in economic growth creates opportunities, as well as challenges, for SIDIT, however the potential to expand core lending 

activities and opportunities arise by serving new types of customers. 

Projects supported by SIDIT have a minimum of matching funds invested by either the project proponent or other parties. 

When security is provided in asset based lending scenarios, leverage ratios used by SIDIT will reflect standard bank loan 

to value criteria. Exceptions to this policy may be approved when the lending decision provides protection of a SIDIT 

investment. 

The structure of 51DI1'5 equity investments is consistent with best business practices in equity investment procedures. The 

structure of SIDIT's loans is consistent with traditional lending criteria. In general terms, amortization periods do not exceed 

the life expectancy olthe assets being secured and the loan term will typically be five years Dr less. 

The purpose of all loans Dr investments funded by SIDIT complies with the SIDIT Act. Fees are market-based and rates 

appropriately represent the inherent risk of each business cirCUmstance. It is envisioned that the loans made by SIDIT will 

eventually become bankable, at which time the enterprise may retire the SIDIT position in favour of a traditional lender 

allowing SIDlT's funds to be re-invested in other promising enterprises. 

Typical equity capital investment will occur afterthe seed funding round as a participant in the growth funding round in the 

interest of generating a return through an eventual realization event or option to redeem capital. Equity capital is attractive 

for early and growth stage companies with limited operating history that are too small to ra ise capital in the public markets 

and have not reached the point where they are able to secure traditional financing. 

In exchange for the high risk that 510lT assumes by investing in smaller and less mature companies, SIDIT incorporates 

terms and conditions, positive and negative covenants, milestone targets, performance measures, and monitoring criteria 

in equity investment agreements that are intended to control company decisions and actions, in addition to holding a 

portion of the company's ownership (and consequently va lue). SIDIT's ro le in the ongoing operation of the enterprises that 

it invests is not passive. Generally, SIDIT has the right to: appoint monitors, appoint candidates for seats on the Boards of the 

enterprises that SIDIT invests in, and hold observer ro les. 

Results 

SIDIT has committed $4B million and advanced $43 million into business ventures. $24 million in principal and interest 

has been repaid to date. Our committed investment of $48 million in loan and equity investments has attracted an 

add itional $111 million (Project cost minus SIDIT Advanced) into the region representing a leverage of $2.22 for every $1 

invested by SIDIT. 

Trust assets, originally $50 million, are currently $51 million as at March 31, 2017 after disbursement of $54 million into 

economic development initiatives in the Southern Interior. In 2006, the Government of British Columbia enacted legislation 

launching SIDIT with a $50 million, one time allocation. Eleven years later with $S4 million of projects funded and disbursed, 

SIDIT is proud to have sustained its initial funding allocation. This is indeed a good news story for SIDIT and the Provincial 

Government for making this solid business investment on behalf of all British Columbians. 
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Thompson Okanagan Loans 
AAA Internet Publishing Inc. dba WTFast Inc. 

Allen Brands Inc. dba Big Surf Beer 

Always On UPS Systems Inc. 

Assured Software Limited 

Athena Farm Holdings Ltd. 

Atrium Ventures Inc. 

Awesense Wireless Inc. 

Bensay Innovative Inc. 

Britewood Industries Ltd. 

• Catalyst Healthcare Ltd. 

ClearWater Springs Ranch 

Complete Home Energy Ltd. 

CS Manufacturing Inc. 

Delta CTechnologies Inc. 

Diacarbon Energy Inc. 

FreshTech Systems Canada Inc. 

GC Green Carbon Inc. 

Great Bear Enterprises Ltd. 

Greenstep Solutions Inc. 

Heimann & Sons Masonry Ltd. 

Helios Global Technologies Ltd. 

Immersive Ventures Inc. 

International Road Technologies Ltd. 

Invaron Pharmaceuticals Inc. 

Jupiter Avionics Corporation 

Just Be Fri ends Kids Inc. (MAZU) 

Kelowna Visual and Performing Arts Centre SOciety 

Kettle Va lley Moulding & Millwork Inc. 

Lemonade GameLabs Inc. 

Mario's Towing Inc. 

Mathtoons Media Inc. 

Columbia Kootenay Loans 
AC Global Systems Ltd. 

Boundary Sawmill Inc. 

Cherry Creek Holding Ltd. 

Cranbrook SOciety for Community Living 

Golden Timber Frames Limited 

• Jhaj & Stewart Brothers Nursery Ltd. 

• Mrs. Palmers Pantry Inc. 

• New Era Nutrition Inc. 

• Nor Va l Rentals Ltd. 

• Okanagan Hockey Group Inc. 

• Okanagan Label and Print Ltd. 

• Pareto Systems Inc. 

Pre Labs Inc. 

Pro Smart Developments Inc. 

Pryme Group Imagery Inc. 

• QHRTechnologies Inc. 

• Regal Ridge Development 

• Reliant Web Hosting Inc. 

• Rfind Systems Inc. 

Rhlnokore Composites Ltd. 

Ruttan Enterprises Ltd. 

Sedo International Foods 

Signa link Technologies Inc. 

• Sky Surfer Technologies Inc. 

• Soil Mate Networks Inc. 

• SST Wireless Inc. 

• The Dubh Glas Distillery Ltd. 

• Thermo Matrix Industries Ltd. 

• Thompson River Veneer Products 

• Tim C. Van Horlick Industry Inc. 

• Two Hat Security Research Corp. 

• Upward Solutions Inc. 

• VericorderTechnologies Inc. 

• Vineyard Networks Inc. 

• Vis/and Media Inc. 

• Vo li nspire Community Contribution Company Inc. 

• Waveteq Communications Inc. 

• Wildrides.ca Incorporated 

Palmer Bar Holdings Inc. 

Red Mounta in Resorts 

Ron Donaldson Relocation Services 

• Selki rk Security Services Inc. 

• Timely Networks Inc. 

• Va lhalla Technologies Inc. 
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Investment Portfolio 

The return in fiscal 2017 for the PH&N portfolio was 8.1 % versus a composite benchmark of 1 0.6%. The overall return since 

inception was 6.9% as compared to a composite benchmark of 6.0% and to the Canadian Consumer Price Index of 1.6%. 

The portfolio, originally $2S mill ion at inception, is currently va lued at $29 million after rea llocation of $3.2 mi llion to SIDIT's 

operating fund for investment into its loan and equity portfolio and grants program. 

PERFOR MANCE METRICS: 

Annua lly establish target return on market investment. 

Report and manage market investments on the basis of investment type and risk, benchmarked against industry 

performance for each category of investment as proVided by the professional investment manager. 

Report on actual net return achieved vs target ROI and vs industry benchmark performance for each category of market 

investment, as well as the overall portfolio. 

TARGET ASSET ALLOCATION AND RANGES 

Assel Cle .. Mlnlinum' 
Canadian equities 12.5% 

Foreign equiti es 22.5% 
------
Total equities 35% 
---- --+----------
Universe Bonds I 7% 

--------_. I - ---
Mortgages 13% 

- -- - l- - -- -
High Yield Bonds 

Total Bonds 

Cash & short-term 

"Percentage of portfolio at market vo/ue. 

of March 31,2017 

Market Value $29,283,422 

Asset Mix (% of total market va lue) I Cash 

Mortgages 

Universe Bonds 

High Yield Bonds 

Canadian Equities 

Global Equities 

0% 

30% 

2% 

, 

--
----

---

'l'oofTotol 

r.rgetO 

20% 

30% 

50% 

17% 

23% 

-j 5% 

45% 

5% I 

5.0 

22.6 

16.1 

4.5 

20.6 

31.2 

Maiilit\u,;;; 

27.5% 

37.5% 

65% 

27% 

30% 
-

10% 

60% 

8% 

5.0 

23.0 

17.0 

5.0 

20.0 

30.0 
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INVESTMENT RETURNS 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended Since Inceptlonl 
Mar/2017 Marl2016 Mar/20tS MarJ2014 (annuahzed) 

0 0 % % % % 

Southern Interior Development Initiative Tru st 8.1 4.7 16.3 12.0 6.9 

Composite Benchmark" 1M ~ ill illl 2.11 
Difference -2.5 +6.5 +4.9 -1.8 +0.9 

Canadian Consumer Price Index 1.6 1.3 1.2 l.S 1.6 

Canadian Equities 12.3 3.8 16.5 16.6 6.1 
S&P/TSX Capped Composite Index 18.6 -6.6 6.9 16.0 4.8 

Global Equities 11 .4 8.8 28.1 19.9 8.4 
MS(J World Net Index 18.3 -0.7 22.1 30.2 7.7 

Fixed Income 4.3 1.7 8.2 3.1 S.6 
Fixed Income Benchmark 1.7 0.9 8.3 1.2 4.7 

Money Market 1.0 0.8 1.2 1.2 1.3 

FTSE TMX Canada 30 Day TBil/lndex o.s O.S 0.9 1.0 0.9 

SIDlT's investment portfolio is managed by Philips, Hagar and North Investment Management (PH&N 1M). Founded in 1964, 

PH&N 1M has grown to become one of Canada's leading investment management firms with $965 billion in assets under 

management. In 2008, PH&N 1M was acquired by Royal Bank of Canada, providing access to significant additional resources 

to evolve their services and strategies in tandem with their clients' Increasingly sophisticated Investment needs. PH&N 1M 

have extensive experience managing balanced portfoliOS and currently manage $10 bi llion in balanced mandates for more 

than 200 institutional clients. 

Their key objective is to add va lue while controlling risk. Their approach is characterized by teamwork and long-term 

thinking. Analysts are responsible for individual security selection, portfolio construction and overall strategy. Portfolio 

managers ensure the implementation of each client's asset mix and investment guidelines. PH&N 1M provides a full range 

of investment funds, including the trad itional asset classes of stocks, government bonds and money market investments, as 

well as l ess~trad itional asset classes and strategies such as corporate bonds and mortgages. 

SIDlT's portfolio is positioned to protect its capita l and outperform its benchmark in periods of stock market weakness, 

primarily due to the use of a low volatil ity eqUity strategy. It may however underperform in periods of stock market strength. 
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Discussion 

The positive macroeconomic signals that emerged in the second half of 2016 continued to thrive into the first part of 

2017. Global leading economic indicators remain at their best levels in several years, economic surprises have been 

overwhelmingly positive, and corporate earnings continue to improve. The most significant uncertainty hanging over 

global investors today relates to what the Trump administration will do over the coming four years, but thus far, optimists 

would appear to outnumber pessimists: risk assets such as equities have soared, enjoying remarkably little volatility in their 

upward trajectory, the U.s. dollar has ri sen, bond yields have gone up, and credit spreads have narrowed. The combination 

of surprisingly strong economic data, surging consumer and business confidence, and better-than-expected earnings 

propelled global stock markets higher over the last year, with most major indexes delivering gains in high double digits. 

More specifically as it relates to fixed income markets, after having risen materially in the latter stages of 2016, global bond 

yields have traded In a fairly narrow range to start 2017. Strong demand for risk assets resulted in solid performance for 

provincial and corporate bonds over the last year. The medium-to-Iong-term view has' not changed; It is forecasted that 

global bond yields will move gradually higher as extraordinary central bank monetary policy subsides and global economic 

growth normalizes. That said, the path to higher rates is not likely to be a straight line. 

Against this backdrop, the Trust's investment portfolio earned a return of 8.1 % in the year ended March 31 st, 2017. This is a 

good return which is in excess ofthe Consumer Price Index +3% target, though has trailed the benchmark overthe last year. 

Given the strength in equ ity markets, low volatility strategies (Canadian and Global equities) have not kept pace with broader 

equity market returns, which is in line with expectations. Over longer term periods, the funds have performed as expected 

and have preserved capital in weaker markets which ultimately delivers a smoother path of long term performance. 

Within the portfo lio, the Trust continue to hold a moderately overweight equity position. This refiects the favourable view of 

equities given the continuing supportive momentum of the risk-on environment that began last year. Within fixed income, 

the Trust sees opportunities for more return potential among carefu lly selected Canadian provincial and high-quality 

corporate bonds, where compensation for risk remains above historical averages. Additionall y, an allocation to High Yield 

Mortgages was recently added to the portfolio which provides further diversification, enhances overall yield, and lessens the 

sensitivity to changes in interest rates within the fixed income component of the portfolio. 
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GOAL 5 CREATE AND SUSTAIN PUBLIC AWARENESS OF AND SUPPORT FOR 
SIDIT'S PURPOSE, GOALS, ACHIEVEMENTS AND SUCCESSES WITH 
A FOCUS ON PARTNERSHIP DEVELOPMENT, COLLABORATION AND 
EXTENDING RURAL REACH. 

Strateg ies 
1. Focus on collaborative partnership development and extending rural reach. 

PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND METRICS : 

a) Measure and report annually on the extension of SIDlT's profi le and community reach including: media profile/hits, 

community and partner presentations, jOint activities, testimonials and success stories 

b) Support and lacilitate Staff, Regional Advisory Committee and Board member presentations and ambassadorship by 

providing a "toolkit" for use In presenting and promoting SIOIT to community stakeholders. 

c) Distribute a press release lor every SIDIT loan, investment and grant. 

2. Deliver customized messages to specific stakeholder group using a variety 01 communication tools. Target audiences and 

stakeholders include: 

PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND METRI CS: 

Business Community 

• Potential and EXisting Investee Companies and 

Organizations 

• Chambers of Commerce/Boards ofTrade 

• Business/Industry Associations 

• Economic Development Agencies 

• Touri sm Associations 

• Professional Service Providers 

(i.e., lawyers, accountants, bankers) 

Lending Partners 

• Financial lnstitutions/Banks/Credit Unions 

• Development Lenders and Investors 

(BDClCFDClWEC) 

• Federal/Provincial/Institutional Grant Funders 

• Private Equity Groups 

PERFORMANCE TARGETS AND METRIC S: 

Educat ional Partners 

• Universities and colleges 

, Accredited training schools 

Government/Communities 

· Municipal Governments 

, Regional Advisory Committees 

· Community-Based Organizations Involved 

in Community and/or Economic 

Development Activities 

First Nations 

• The General Public 

, Members 01 the Legislative Assembly 

• Senior Ministry officials 

• SIDIT Area Members of Parliament 

a) Share cl ient success stories in all forms of media (print, publications, social media). 

b) Encourage the impact DI Staff, Regional Advisory Committee and Board members'presentations and ambassadorsh ip 

by providing a"toolkit': including video and print materials lor use in presenting and promoting 51 DiTto stakeholders 

in their communities. 
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Results 
PA RTN ER SHI P WI TH UNIVERSITY OF BC OKANAGAN 

In Fiscal 2017, SIDIT collaborated with the Univers ity of BC, Okanagan Campus by investing $50,000 in the UBC Okanagan 

co-op student program. The pilot program makes available grants of up to $5,000 to qualifying businesses in the Southern 

Interior region of B.C. looking to bring on a co-op student from the pre-screened talent pool for the first t ime. The goals 

of the grant program are to develop co-op experiences and opportunities, encourage small- to medium-sized enterprises 

in the Southern Interior to hire a co-op student, support regional resident recruitment efforts by helping students access 

employment off-campus, as well as create a bridge between communities and the Okanagan campus of UBC. 

The program has a particular focus on co-op work experiences that demonstrate direct impact and community development 

around agriculture, forestry, pine beetle recovery, transportation, tourism, mining, small business, economic development 

and energy matters. SIDIT has provided 50% of the wage costs for students up to $5000. 

SIDIT'S BUSINESS ADVISO RY SERVICES PROGRAM 

The Business Advisory Services Program was launched in fiscal 2017, and was developed to assist small to medium size 

businesses with practical and functional support. The Program customizes peer-ta-peer mentoring solutions in order to 

assist business owners to successfully navigate the path to success by offering affordable hands on expertise and actionable 

solutions when they need it most. 

Case Studies have been prepared for some of the Business Advisory Services Program clients and can be viewed on the 

SIDIT BAS website at http://www.siditbas.com/case-studies/ 

2016 SOCIO-ECONOMIC REPORT 

The Socia-Economic Report, prepared by Lochaven Management Consultants/Urban Matters in 2016, focused specifically on 

SIDIT and how SIDIT's programs impacted the communiti es of the Southern Interior. The report focused on the acquisition 

of both qualitative and quantitative impact related information; and employed both primary and secondary research. By 

definition, the approach included a process of scoping, direct fiscal assessment, surveying of a strat ified sample of clientsl 

stakeholders, and the careful inputting and imputing of indirect/induced impacts. The Report in its entirety can be viewed 

on our website at: https:llsidit-bc.ca/a ppl ication/fi lesl2814/871 1/2619/SIDITimpactAssessment-SPREADS.pdf 

SIDIT COMMUN ICATIONS 

SIDIT attended and presented to 11 different organizations in Fisca l 2017, including both the Southern Interior Local 

Government Association and the Association of I<ootenay and Boundary Local Government conferences in April 2016. 

In addition to the programs and reports noted above, SIDIT publishes newsletters and press re leases on funded grants 

and loans, as we ll as setting out the full list of approved grant and loan recipients in this Annual Report. SIDIT continues to 

attend and provide useful information on its programs to businesses and municipa lities in the Southern Interior. SIOIT has 

developed a communications plan and is consistently getting the word out in the Southern Interior as to what SIDIT does 

and how it may help grow the economy. 

Discussion 
At the Strateg ic Planning meeting of SIDIT's Board of Directors, held in September, 201 6, the Board determined that an 

additional Goal was required to measure awareness and support for SIOlT's economic initiatives in the Southern Interior. As 

this Goal did not come in to affect until Spring 2017, fu ll measurement of it will not be rea lized until the end of Fiscal 201 B. 
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Post Secondary Grants 

In 2016117 SIDIT provided $250,000 to fund student scholarships, bursaries and coop program. This commitment greatly 

enhances 51011'5 mission to provide student learning opportunities, create and advance knowledge and understanding, 

and enhance the economic and social we ll-being of the communities In the Southern Interior. 

Testimonials 

SIDIT SCHOLARS HI P RECIPIENTS FROM THE UNIVERSITY OF BR ITISH CO LUMBIA OKANAGAN 

Blago Hristovski, Fourth Year, Mechanical Engineering 

"I would like to extend my sincere appreCiation to the Southern Interior Development Initiative 

Trust, which has finanCially assisted me in completing a bachelor of applied science from UBC's 

Okanagan campus. Since I was a young child, aircraft have fascinated me. This fascination grew 

into a passion for flying aircraft. Since high school, I have wanted to pursue a career where I 

could enhance lives with my contributions. Therefore, I combined my passion for aerospace and 

engineering to continue advancing aerospace technology, which will allow society to fly further 

and more safely every day. After graduating, I am beginning my master of applied science at the University ofToranto Institute for 

Aerospace Studies, where I will further study the design of highly maneuverable unmanned aerial vehicles (UAVs). This research 

area has excellent potential to reduce the operational costs and the associated risks for high-risk flight missions where there are 

lives on the line and every second counts. Once again, thank you Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust for your support 

of SIDIT Scholarship Recipients from the Okanagan College. 
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OKANAGAN COLLEG E SC HOLARSHIP RECIP IENTS WERE ASKED 

HOW HAS THIS AWARD HELPED TH EM AND WHAT TH EIR CAREER GOALS ARE? 

Justin Greenway (Culinary Arts) 

"Pay for tuition and help support myself financially so I can 

focus on school" - "I want to open my own bakery" 

Joseph Ross (Welding Foundation) 

"Cut down on school debt" - "travel the world as a welder" 

Matt Walsh (Welding Foundation) 

"Kept me from having to choose between my home and 

schooling" 

Shae Kiry liuk (Electrical Pre App) 

"Will help me work less and study more" - "Achieve red seal" 

THOMPSON RIVERS UNIVERSITY 2016- 2017 

Emmanuel Hananiya 
"I would like to thank you for 

awarding me this bursary. If really 

means a lot to me as f am really 
financially unstable and was owing 

tuition for the winter semester but 
with your award I am one step closer to covering that debt. 

Thank you very much for making a difference in students' lives 

and education. God bless." 

Kyley Drach 

"I would like to start off by first thanking your organization so 

much for inves ting in my education and future. I have never 

won an award before, 50 this was very special for me. Without 

your contribution, I wouldn't have been able to afford taking 

the extra class I was taking during my semester at TRU, so 

thank you very much. Having someone invest in my education 
relieved a bit of my financial strain and helped me to better 

focus on my studies, It's also very encouraging to see that there 

are people out there who value education enough to invest in 

students! Once again, thank you so much and I hope through 

my education and your support f can con tinue to make 
positive changes in my life and the lives of others." 

Cody Lee Forsythe (Welding Foundation) 

"Help (over expenses such as books, tools and rent H 

Joseph Ross 

"This award will go along way to 

helping me with the practical side 

of the endeavorsuch as books, 

boots and welding gloves. As I am 

new to this field and line of work I 

will tend to go through quite a few 

pairs of gloves." 

Mae Frank 

Pam Deveau with 
Joseph Ross 

"Winning this award means a lot to 

me as it will give me much more 

than money. That money can be 

translated into 55 hours of time 

that I will not be working during the 

year; this is an extra two hours a week for me to enjoy. These 

hours will be spent studying to keep my grades up as well as 

practicing a healthy lifestyle and relieving my stress. I will be 

able to spend an extra hour studying without the consequence 

of losing an hour of sleep, and I will have the freedom to go 

on long hikes (which are the only things that get me through 

exams). I would like to thank 51T1D for opening up a world of 

possibilities for me and rest assured that those possibilities will 

not be squandered." 
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51DIT's Business Advisory Services Program 

In September 2016 SIDIT officially launched its Business Advisory Services ("BAS") Program. The creation 

of the BAS Program is an important part of SIDlT's continued mission to support and accelerate the success of 

southern interior businesses. 

The BAS Program recognizes that every business is unique, as such the Program is designed to conform to a particular 

business' needs. The BAS Program provides peer-to-peer mentorlng through established-executive Advisors, and 

successful business leaders in their own right. The BAS program provides small to medium size businesses with access to 

expert knowledge In various areas, such as Human Resources, Marketing, Technology, Agricu lture, Manufacturing and day 

to day operations. 

SIDlT's BAS Program is designed to help small to medium size businesses achieve their vision for growth and sustainability. 

Testimonials 

' WHAT HAS IT MEANT TO YOU TO WORK WITH SIDIT?" 

Troy McDonald, General Manager, Nor-Val Rentals 

"I had never heard of SID IT before all of this but! can tell you thiS, SlDlThas been 

an angel for Nor-Val, we had a vision for this company and now we are living it 

entirely because of SIDIT. None of this would have been possible without SIDIIT, 

none of it" 

"WHAT WAS TH E GREATEST VALUE OF WORKING 

WITH TH E BUSINESS ADVISORY SERVICE ?" 

Jim Clipperton, Owner, Nor-Val Renta ls 

"Even with my own trusted advisory board firmly in place, I knew that I could 

benefit from this service. So many companies don't even have boards, let alone 

these key specialists available to them. BAS was able to fill the gaps for Nor-Val 

with expertise and experience exactly where we needed it." 
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"WHAT WOU LD YOU TELL OTHER S CON SIDE RI NG TH E 

BU SINESS ADVI SORY SERVICE AT SIDIT?" 

Josh French, Owner, Heimann & Sons Maso nry 

"I wish I had found this service 10 years ago, the money you pay for this program 

is peanuts compared to what you get out ofltin return. I getit, when you're a 

business owner time is expensive but this is truly the best time and money you'll 

ever spend. It's investing in your end game." 

Read the complete case studies at http://www.siditbas.com/case-stud ies/ 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

We prepared th is discussion and analysis of financial 

position and results of operations of SIDIT on May 31, 2017. 

Read it in conjunct ion with our audited financia l statements 

and related notes for the year ended March 31,2017. 

We prepared the financial information in this report in 

accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for­

profit organizations. We report in Canadian dollars. Totals 

and percentages may not always add up due to rounding. 

Nature of Operations 
We were established as a corporation in 2005 by the 

Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust Act and 

operate as a not-for-profit economic development trust. 

As a non-profit corporation, we are exempt from income 

taxes. We are not a GST registrant and therefore pay GST 

and provincial sales tax and receive no rebates on taxable 

purchases. 

We are not an agent of the government. 

Category Source 

Internal Control Over 
Financial Reporting 
Our fiscal 2017 evaluation of the effectiveness of interna l 

control over financial reporting did not identify any control 

gaps that are likely to materially affect SIDIT. 

Revenue Sources 
We received a one-time development allocation payment 

from the BC Provincial Government in the amount of $50 

million. 

100% of our operational funding comes from returns on 

market investments and development initiatives including 

loan Interest and application fees. 

Our model is premised on generating sufficient revenue to 

allow us to break even over the business cycle. We generate 

surpluses during high points In the market's cycle, and may 

generate deficits during bear market periods. 

Fiscal 201 7 Fiscal 2016 

Investment Income Phillips Hager & North-Mutual Funds and Bonds 48% 39% 

Development Initiative Income Private Companies 52% 61 % 

Contributions BCIC 0% 0% 
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Investment Income 

Our prime investment objectives for surplus funds are: to 

meet SIOlT's financial obligations, related to disbursements 

in support of economic development initiatives; and the 

day to day operations of the Trust, while preserving and 

expanding reserves necessary to meet future opportunities 

and obligations. 

We invest in: highly liquid/high quality money market 

instruments; government securities; investment-grade 

corporate debt securities; Canadian equities; foreign 

equities; pooled funds; closed-end investments; companies; 

and other structured vehicles that are permitted Investment 

categories. 

Development Investment Income 
We lend to, and invest in, promising commercial enterprises 

that may not fully qualify for credit through traditional 

~rce.0!.al~nclng the lev.el of risk that Is ~resent, with the 

community economic benefits that are being created, and 

the long-term potential that future cash flow and equity 

targets will be achieved. Interest rates are risk based. 

Contributions 
We have an agreement with the British Columbia Innovation 

Council (BClCI to jointly support economic development 

initiatives within our area. 

Expenses 
We are committed to managing our operational expenses 

so they do not exceed expected revenue over the business 

cycle. We do this by preparing an annual operating budget 

that Is approved by the Board. Monthly budget variance 

reports are provided to the Management Committee. 

Significant unbudgeted expenses require furth er Board 

approval in advance of incurring the expense. 



ANALYSIS OF FISCAL 2017 
OPERATING RESULTS COMPARED TO BUDGET 

REVENUES 
Income on Investments 

Unrea lized ga ins/losses 

Rea lized ga ins 

Income on Development Initiatives 

Other Revenue 

Business Advisory 

Contributions 

EXPENSES 
Board Costs 

Education Awa rds and Grants 

Office and Adm inistration 

Business Advisory 

Professional /Consulting/Investment 

Sa laries and benefits 

Provision for Loans 

Gain/-Deficiency 

Revenue 

INCOME ON INVESTMENTS / 
UNREALIZED GAINS (LOSS ES) 

20H 
Aotual 

$789,793 

$111,871 

$1,402,216 

$2,235,436 

$220,095 

$57,464 

$0 

$32,047 
$726,511 

$207,881 

$185,148 

$321,096 

$683,930 

$2,612,885 

$47,377 

With global capital markets improving but volati le, 

investment returns combined with unrealized gains resulted 

in a combined return of 8.1 % which is above our budgeted 

5% return on investment. 

INCOME ON DEVELOPMENT IN ITIAT IVES 

We achieved 129% of our budgeted loan interest as we had 

several payouts in this fiscal. 

~O17 
d et 

$800,000 -$10,207 

$0 $111,871 

$719,500 $682,716 

$1,739,000 $496,436 

$200,000 $20,095 

$243,000 -$185,536 

$12,500 -$12,500 

$32,000 -$47 

$775,000 $48,489 

$235,000 $27,119 

$373,000 $187,852 

$297,000 -$24,096 

$802,000 $118,070 

$1,200,000 -$1,412,885 

$0 $47,3'77 

OTHER REVENUE 

We collected more fees on loans due to fees being charged 

for early payout and several deferral options exercised. 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

British Columbia Innovation Counci l (BClC) drew nothing 

out of the budgeted amount for payout to students. The 

remaining student grants should be paid in 20 18 and that 

will be the final year of contributions. 
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Expenditures 

BOARD COSTS 

The Board costs for meetings were on budget, even with 

additional meetings for our 10 year anniversary and 

committee meetings. 

EDUCATI ON AWA RDS AND GRANTS 

We fund education awards in partnership with others. 

The Education institutions decide which students receive 

funds and how funding is disbursed. Our Education budget 

variance of $25,000 is due to BCIC drawing out less than 

the budgeted amount for payout to BClClSIDIT funded 

programs. BClC's 50% share of funding is reflected in 

"Contrib utions~ 

A Grant budget variance of $23,489 Is due to previously 

committed grants being postponed to the next fiscal 

yearend due to the proponents not being able to verify 

matching funding. We did meet our Strategic Target for 

grants which was for a total of $5,500,000. 

OFF ICE AND ADMINISTRATION 

We had a $27,119 surplus in operations due to amortization 

and communication costs being lower, 

SALARIE S AND 8ENEFITS 

The $118,069 surplus in admin salaries was due to not 

having all staff positions filled during the year. 

PROFESSIONAL ACCO UNTIN G 

Accounting Services was $8,823 over as we had a new Audit 

team come in early January to do preliminary work. We have 

a surplus of $5,670 for consulting services as we did not do 

as many Due Diligence Reports as budgeted. A surplus for 

BAS was offset by the lower corresponding revenues so that 

the allocated amount of budget was on target. A surplus of 

$3,766 was incurred with lower investment management 

fees. Legal costs went over budget by $22,525 as we had 

a major change to Loan Agreements for Revolving loans, 

polley reviews and personnel issues. We had a $2,183 deficit 

in Web and Data base fees due to not completing our new 

website within the last fiscal year and we also changed our 

IT support service provider. 

PROVISION FOR D[V[lOPMENT INITIATIVE LOSSES 

An additional provision of$2,612,885 has been made against 

certain outstanding development initiative investments 

which management considers unlikely to be recovered. 
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FINANCIAL POSITION 

ASSETS & LIABILITIES 

Assets 

Current Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $862,054 $356,951 $1,107,445 $1,518,509 $3,219,309 

Accounts receivable $162,016 $640,625 $149,377 

Prepaid expenses $10,720 $5,381 $6,701 $8,478 $10,445 

CP of Development Initiatives 871,504 ~2,096,614 $3,488,859 $447,384 $2,257,701 

i I $1.744,278 $2,582,4.79 ~2,614,99? $5,65M32 

Investments $29,283,422 $29,601,310 $30,753,080 $30,048,349 $30,270,043 

Development Initiatives $19,721,853 $18,606,431 $14,949,834 $17,140,914 $12,393,716 

Property & Equipment $34,841 $19,428 ,$33,270 $43,074 $27,772 

$50,784,394 $50,686,H5 $5l!,501,205 $<19,847,333 $46,328,363 

liabilities and Fund Balance 

Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payable $129,680 $78,778 $58,688 $60,940 $348,413 

Deferred contributions $12,500 $12,500 $14,500 $255,500 $433,139 

$142,180 $91,278 $73,188 $316,440 $781,552 

Fund Balance: 

Regional Account: 

Externally restricted $50,642,214 $50,594,837 $50,428,017 $49,530,893 $47,546,811 

$50,784,394 $50,686,115 $50,501,205 $49,847,333 $48,328,363 
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Assets 

CASH AND CASH EQ UIVALENTS 

Our cash equivalent assets are monies currently held in 

Va ntage One Credit Union. 

ACCOUNTS REC EIVAB LE 

Our accounts receivable include accrued interest on 

Development Initiatives for the month of March. 

PREPAID EXPENSES 

Prepaid expenses are monies paid for rent deposits and for 

insurance premiums paid in advance. 

CURRENT PORTION Of DEVELOPMENT IN ITIATIVES 

This includes that portion of Development Initiatives that 

are due and payable in the next year. 

DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE S 

As part of our mandate, we provide funding for business 

ventures. This funding is provided through our development 

initiatives. 

INVESTMENTS 

The principal financial instruments affecting our financial 

condition and resu lts of operations are bonds and equity 

investments. Our investments expose SIDITto global market 

risk as well as interest rate risk. Although the short-term 

nature of our cash and money market investments limits 

the impact of fair value fluctuati ons, our longer-term bonds 

and debentures will have greater interest rate sensitivity. 

We manage interest rate risk by monitoring portfolio 

duration and yields with the fund administrator. Liquidity 

risk is low because our market investments are in pooled 

fund units redeemable within a short time period. Our 

funds are invested with Phillips, Hager & North Investment 

Management 

PROP ERTY & EQU IPMENT 

Capital assets include office furniture, computer hardware 

and software with the net book value of $34,841 after 

depreciation. 

Liabilities 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable includes monies owed to a loan client. 

Accrued liabilities of $19,635 are for accounting fees. 

CU RREN T PORTION Of DEfERRED CONTRIBUTIONS 

This represents $12,500 of the unspent externally restricted 

grant from the British Columbia Innovation Council. 

Equity 

REG IONAL ACCOU NT 

This account has increased by current net gain of $47,377. 
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PROFIT AND lOSS ACTUAlS 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Income on Investments 789,792 754,566 893,694 761,868 828,276 

Income Development Initiatives 2,235,436 1,564,666 1,858,465 1,421,093 1,735,793 

Other revenue 220,095 449,294 255,447 204,345 87,824 

Contributions 2,000 241,000 177,639 22,625 

Business Advisory 57,464 

Total Revenues 2,674;.Q18 

Board Costs 32,047 24,924 22,833 17,453 17,382 

Education Awards and Grants 726,511 707,173 930,000 1,235,750 556,550 

Office and Administration 207,881 148,465 147,143 133,591 84,268 

Professional Fees 321,096 399,161 201,480 176,224 239,611 

Salaries and Benefits 683,930 652,813 578,627 466,792 332,656 

Business Advisory 185,147 

Total Expenses 2,156,612 1,932,536 1,880,083 2,029,810 1,230,467 

Excess of Revenue over Expenses 61 83 99 1,368,523 535 135 4051 

Unrealized gain( loss) Investments 111,871 (889,793) 2,691,174 2,190,751 2,578,925 

Realized gain(l oss) on investments 1,402,216 1,424,780 1,175,949 446,938 (706,178) 
Provision for Development In itiative 
Losses (2,612,885) (1,206,157) (4,338,522) (1,188,743 ) (2,599,060) 

NET INCOME (lOSS) 47,377 166,820 897,124 1,984,081 717,738 
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LIQUIDITY 

Cash flow, excluding provision for development initiative losses and unrealized loss on investments, was positive for the 

year at $.5 million. We ended the year with $.86 million in cash and cash equivalents. 

As discussed, our revenue model may result in surpluses and deficits over the business cycle because revenues fluctuate 

while our costs are mainly fixed. We have sufficient liquidity and capital resources to fund operations through a sustained 

market downturn. 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash provided by (used in): 
Operations: 

Excess of revenues over expenses 

Items not involving cash: 

Amortization 

Fair value re-measurement of investments 

Gain on disposal of investments 

Provision for development initiative losses 

Change in non-cash operating working capital 

Funding of development initiatives 

Repayment of development initiatives 

Investing: 

Proceeds on sale of investments 

Purchase of investments 

Acquisition of property and equipment 

lncrease(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

2017 

47,377 

8,227 

(111,871) 

(1,402,216) 

2,612,885 

1,154,402 

45,563 

(3,759,805) 

1,256,607 

(1,303,233) 

9,318,657 

(7,486,682) 

(23,639) 

1,808,336 

505,103 

356,951 

862,05'1 

2016 

166,820 

13,841 

889,793 

(1,424,780) 

1,206,157 

851,831 

19,410 

(4,068,737) 

760,246 

(2,437,250) 

8,279,558 

(6,592,802) 

1,686,756 

(750,494) 

1,107,445 

356,951 
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Commitments: 

As at March 31, 2017, the Trust has committed funding and deferred contributions of $87,500 as follows: 

Project/Recipient Description Amount Anticipated Disbursement 

British Columbia Co-funding of innovation, 
Innovation Council commercialization and 

academic awards 

Various development Conditionally approved grants 
Initiatives and grants 

FUTURE OUTLOOK 

BUDGET AND 3 YEAR PROJECTIONS 

Investment Revenues 
Development Initiatives Revenues Other 

Revenues 
Contributions 
Total Revenues 

Education Awards 

Grants 

Total Education & Grants 

Wages & Be nefits 

Board expenses 
Admin costs 

Professional Services 

Total Expenses 

Tota l Expe nses & Grants 

TOTAL INCOME OVER EXPENSES 

Provision for Development Initiatives loss 
NET INCOM E 

$1,535,500 

$1,738,000 

$353,000 

$12,500 

$275,000 

$500,000 

$807,000 

$38,000 

$250,000 

$569,000 

$1,664,000 

$2,439,000 

1,200,000 

$1,200,000 

$0 

$12,500 

$75,000 

$1,396,000 

$2,000,000 

$450,000 

$0 

$250,000 

$500,000 

7 0 

$864,000 

$32,000 

$250,000 

$750,000 

$1,896,000 

$2,646,000 

1200000 

$1,200,000 

$0 

'llmlng - Fiscal 

2018 

2018 

$1,242,000 

$2,200,000 

$450,000 

$0 

$250,000 

$500,000 

$750000 

$900,000 

$32,000 

$1,200,000 

$0 

SOU T IIE RN I IITER IOR DEVEL OP M ENT INITI ATIV E TRU ST fl llHU A l REPOR T 2 01 7 

59 

$1,200,000 

$2,302,000 

$450,000 

$0 

$250,000 

$500,000 

$750000 

$950,000 

$32,000 

$270,000 

$750,000 

$2,002,000 

$2,752,000 

1,200000 

$1,200,000 

$0 



Revenues 
Investment income is expected to be 5% as we are 

forecasting a slow growing global economy. We have not 

made foreca sts for unrealized gains/losses. 

Development Initiative interest income is calculated on 

10% returns on development initiative balances net of 

provisions, 

Non-interest revenues and partner contributions are 

budgeted to remain steady for the next few years. 

Expenses 
Education awards will decline In 2019 as our commitment 

for certain awards will be fulfilled. 

Our financial statements are recorde~ on a cash basis, 

meaning that disbursements are made to projects 

regardless of the year for which the funds were budgeted. 

In our annual budget, previous years uncommitted funds 

are accounted for and are also available for disbursement. 

Salaries and benefits are projected to increase for 

inflationary, experience and bonus components. 

All other expenses are carefully contro lled and most have 

Inflationary Increases to the categories. 



Management's Responsibility and Certification 

Management is responsible for ensuring that the financial 

statements and other financial information in this annual 

report are complete and accurate. Management has 

prepared the financial statements according to Canadian 

accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. 

We certi fy that: 

We oversaw the design of internal controls to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with 

Canadian accounting standards for not-far-profit 

organizations; 

We have reviewed the financial statements and other 

information In this annual report; 

• We believe the report reflects all material facts for the 

period covered; 

. We do not believe the report misstates any material fact. 

We believe that the financial statements and other financial 

information in the annual report fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations and 

cash flows of the Southern Interior Development Initiative 

Trust (the Trust) as of the dates and forthe periods presented. 

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves 

the use of estimates, which have been made using careful 

judgment. It is possible that circumstances will cause 

actual results to differ. We do not believe it is likely that any 

differences will be material. 

The Board is responsible for establishing prudent rules of 

business and conduct. It is the Trust's policy to mainta in the 

highest standards of ethics in all its activities. The Trust has 

employee and director conduct policies, including conflict 

of interest rules, to achieve those standards. 

The Board is also responsible for ensuring that management 

fulfills its financial reporting and control responsibilities, and 

has appointed an independent audit committee to oversee 

the financial reporting process. The committee members 

are independent directors who do not participate in the 

day-to·day operations of the Trust. The audit committee 

meets annually with management and the external auditors 

to review the: 

• Financial statements, 

• Adequacy offinancial reporting, accounting systems 

and controls, and 

· External audit functions. 

The external auditors have fu ll and open access to the audit 

committee, with and without the presence of management. 

The audit committee has reviewed these financial 

statements and has recommended the Board approve them. 

E~ 
Chief Executive Officer 
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KPMG LLP 
3205-32 Street, 3rd Floor 
Vernon Be V1 T 9A2 
Canada 
Tel 250-503-5300 
Fax 250-545-6440 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors of Southern Interior Development InltiaUve Trust 

We have audited the accompanying fi l}ancial slatements of Southern Interior 
Development Initiative Trust, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
March 31, 2017, the statement of operations and changes in fund balances and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and noles, comprising a summary of Significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory Information. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements In accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit 
organizations, and for such internal control as management determines Is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance wi th Canadian generally accepted auditiog 
standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our 
judgment, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
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Page 2 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust as at March 31, 2017, 
and its results of operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-proflt organizations. 

Comparative information 

The financial statements of Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust as at March 
31, 2016 were audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on 
those statements on May 30, 2016 . 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

May 29, 2017 

Vernon, Canada 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Statement of Financial Position 

March 31, 2017. with comparative Information for 2016 

2017 2016 

Assets 

Corrent assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 862,054 $ 356,951 
Prepaid expenses 10,720 5,381 
Current ~ortion of devel0l:!ment initiatives (note 3) 8711504 2,0961814 

1,744,278 2,458,946 

Development initiatives (note 3) 19,721,853 18,606,431 

Investments (note 4) 29,283,422 29,601,310 

Property and equipment (note 5) 34,841 19,428 

$ 50)84.394 $ 50,686,115 

Liabilities and Fund Balance 

Currenlliabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 129,680 $ 78,778 
Deferred contributions 121500 121500 

142,180 91,278 

Regional Account 50,642,214 50, 594,837 

Commitments and contingencies (note 6) 

$ 50,784.394 $ 50,686,11 5 

See accompanying notes to financial statements . 

On behalf of the Board: 

Director 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Statement of Operations and Changes in Fund Balance 

Year ended March 31,2017, with comparative information for 2016 

2017 2016 

Revenue: 
Income on development initiatives $ 2,235,438 $ 1,564,666 
Fees and other 199,095 451 ,294 
Business adviso!::t services 571464 

2,491 .995 2,015,960 

Education awards and grants (726,511) (707,173) 

Provision for devel0l:!menl initiative losses 1216121685l {1120611561 

(647,401) 102,631 

General and administrative expenses: 
Amortization 8,227 13,841 
Board costs 32,047 24,924 
Business adviSOry services 185,147 
Consulting fees 134,331 252,784 
Insurance 6,112 5,978 
Office and administration 172,543 128,647 
Professional fees 93,531 53,832 
Salaries and benefits 6831930 662,81 3 

1,315.868 1,132.819 

Deficiency of revenues over expenses from operations (2,163,269) (1,030,166) 

Investments: 
Fair value re-measurement ot Investments 111,8 71 (889,793) 
Gain on disposal of investments, net 1,402,2 16 1,424,780 
Income earned 789 ,793 754,566 
Investment manaeement fees eaid (931234} (92,5451 

2210,646 1,197.008 

Excess of revenues over expenses 47,377 166,820 

Regional account, beginning of year 50,594,837 50,428, 017 

Regional account, end of year $ 50,642,21 4 $ 50,594,837 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended March 31 , 2017, with comparative information for 2016 

2017 2016 

Cash provided by (used in): 

Operations: 
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 47,377 $ 166,820 
Items not involving cash: 

Amortization 8.227 13,841 
Fair value fe-measurement of investments (111.871) 889,793 
Gain on disposal of investments (1.402.216) (1.424,780) 
Provision for develoemenl initiative losses 21612 1885 1,2061157 

1,154,402 851 ,831 

Change in non-cash operating working capital 45,563 19,410 
Funding of development initiatives (3.759.805) (4.088,737) 
Reea~ments of develoemenl initiatives 112561607 76°1 246 

(1.303.233) (2,437.250) 

Investing: 
Proceeds on sale of Investments 9,316,657 8,279,558 
Purchase of Investments (7,486.682) (6.592;802) 
AE9uisition of efOee!!z: and eguiemenl ,23,639l 

1,808,336 1,686,756 

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 505,103 (750,494) 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 356,951 1,107,445 

Cash and cash e9uivalents, end of year $ 862.054 $ 356,951 

See accompanying notes to fina ncia l statements. 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended March 31, 2017 

Nature of operations: 

Southern Inlerior Devetopmenl lniliative Trust (the "Trusf') was formed in February 2006 under the 
Southern Interior Development Initiative Trust Act (the 'Act' ) and shortly thereafter received a one­
time contribution from the Province of British Columbia, The Trust is a not-for-profit entity and is 
exempt from income tax under section 149 of the Income TaxAc!' 

The vision of the Trust Is a fulure where economic opportunities are enabled, providing loog-lasliog 
measurable benefits to communities, a future where reglona1 investment creates significant positive 
impacts across the region where smaller communities are given opportunities 10 remain or become 
economically sustainable, and a future where Ihere is a slrong and diversified economy in Ihe 
Soulhern Inlerior thai supports Ihe developmenl of viable, healthy, vital and sustainable communities 
throughout. The mission of the Trust is to support regionally strategic Investments in economic 
development projects that will have long-lasting and measurable regional benefits for the Southern 
Inlerior. 

1. SIgnificant accounting policies: 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for 
nol-for-profit organizations. The Trust's significant accounting policies are as follows: 

(a) Fund accounting: 

The Trust reports its activities on a fund accounting basis. The Trust currently has a 
General Fund (with a $nil balance) and a Regional Account Fund, which is externally 
restricted. The Regional Account includes balances which are invested in property and 
equipment and represents the amount currently available for development initiatives and 
administrative costs. 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Noles to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31,2017 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(b) Revenue recognition: 

The Trust follows the restricted fund method of accounting for contributions. Under the Act, 
the Trust has one Regional Account fund that reports contributions restricted to activities 
outlined In its respective strategic plan. The externally restricted one-time contribution has 
been recognized in the year received. Externally restricted contributions not related to the 
Act are recognized as revenue in the year In which the relaled expenses are recognized, 
all within the General Fund. I 

Income is recognized when the service has been provided or earned, provided that 
collection of the relevant receivable is probable, persuasive evidence of an arrangement 
exists and the price is fIXed or determinable. All income is included in the Regional 
Account, in accordance with the Act. 

(c) Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and short-term deposit which are highly 
liquid with orlglnat maturities of less than three months. Any cash or cash equivalents held 
in investment portfolios is induded with investments. 

(d) Property and equipment: 

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization. Amortization is 
provided using the declining balance method and following annual rates: 

Asset 

Office furniture 
leasehold improvements 
Computer hardware 
Computer software 

(e) Use of estimates: 

Rate 

20% 
20% 
30% 
50% 

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions thai affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such 
estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of development initiatives. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically and, 
as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in the statement of operations in the 
year in wh ich they become known or are revised. 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Noles to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31 , 2017 

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

(f) Financial instruments: 

Financial Instruments are recorded at faIr value on initial recognition. Equity instruments 
that are quoted in an active market are subsequently measured at fair value, The Trust 
accounts for aU convertible debllnslrumenls by initially measuring the equity component of 
the non-publicly tradeable entity al $nll. AU other financial instruments are subsequently 
recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless management has elected to carry the 
instruments at fair value. The Trust has not elected to earlY any such financial instruments 
at fair value. 

Transaction costs Incurred on the acquisition of fmancial instruments measured 
subsequently at fair value are expensed as Incurred. All other financial instruments are 
adjusted by transection costs incurred on acquisition and financing costs, which are 
amortized using the straight-line method. 

Financial assets are assessed for Impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal 
year if there are Indicators of Impairment. If there is an indicator of impairment, the Trust 
determines if there Is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of 
future cash flows from the financial asset. If there is a significant adverse change in the 
expected cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset Is reduced to the highest of 
the present value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized from 
selling the financial asset or the amount the Trust expects to realize by exercising ils right 
to any collateral. If events and circumstances reverse in a future year, an impairment toss 
will be reversed to the extent of the improvement, not exceeding the Initial carrying villue. 

2. Cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents indudes cash held in trust of $110,044 (2016 - $58,688) that is 
restricted in its use to offset a corresponding liability. 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Noles to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31 , 2017 

3. Development Initiatives: 

At year end, there are 68 (2016 - 62) development initiatives outstanding as follows: 

Gross 

Loans - direct $ 10,232.924 
Loans - convertible 11 ,703,669 
loans via Community Futures 

Development Corp. ("CFDC") 340,385 
Equity - common shares 4,679,398 
Equity - preferred shares 4? 651722 

31,722,098 

less current portion 

$ 31 ? 221098 

(a) loans - direct: 

$ 

$ 

2017 
Net 

9,343,719 
6,859,584 

340,385 
2,543,155 
115061533 

20,593,356 

(871 ,503) 

19? 21 1B53 

$ 

$ 

2016 
Net 

8,895,667 
8,11 0,073 

373,795 
2,323,595 

999 1915 

20,703,045 

(2,096,614) 

18
1
606,431 

The trust has 23 (2016 - 22) direclloans outstanding which bear interest at rates thai 
range from 4.10% to 16% per annum. Interest and principal amounts are due al 
various dates between March 23 , 2018 and November 1, 2034. 

b) Loans· convertible: 
The trusl has 30 (2016 • 26) convertible loans that bear interest at rates that range 
from 6% to 14% per annum. Interest and prinCipal amounts are due at various dales 
between July 1, 2017 and September 1, 2020. The loans are convertible to common 
shares of the companies, wh ich are non-publicly traded , at the option of the Trust. No 
value has been ascribed to the convertible option. 

(c) Loans via CFOC: 
The Trust has 4 (201 6 - 4) loans made via CFOe's Southern Interior Business 
Investment Fund which bear interest at rates that range from 5.2% to 8.5% per annum. 
The principal amounts are due at various dates between July 31, 2016 and September 
15,2024. 

(d) Equity - common shares: 
The Trust has 6 (2016 - 4) common share investments. 

(e) Equity - preferred shares: 
The Trust has 5 (2016 - 4) prefe rred share investments that bear dividends of 8% per 
annum. 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Noles to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31. 2017 

3. Development Initiatives (continued): 

The change in provision for development initiative losses for the year was as follows: 

Change In 
provision, net 

ofwrile...offs 
2016 and recoveries 2017 

Loans - direct $ 1,451,657 $ (562,452) $ 889,205 
loans - convertible 2,543,978 2,300,127 4,844,105 
Equity - common shares 2,136,243 2,136,243 
Equity - preferred shares 2,959,190 300,000 3,259,189 

$ 91091 1°68 $ 21°371675 $ 11.128? 42 

In addition to the adjustments to the above noled provision, during the year $28,492 (2016 -
$16,278) was directly recovered in the statement of operations. These amounts had previously 
been allowed for and included in the provision for development initiatives. 

4. Investments: 

Bonds, measured at amort ized cost 
Equities, measured at fair value 
Money market, measured at amortized cost 

7 

201 7 

$ 6 ,042,770 
17,989,392 
5,251,260 

$ 29,283.422 

2016 

$ 5,968,717 
18 ,012,004 

5,620,589 

$ 29,601 ,310 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2017 

4. Investments (contrnued)! 

Details of investment activity during the year Is as follows: 

2017 2016 

Opening balance $ 29,601,310 $ 30,753,080 
Income earned and reinvested 786,259 749,025 
Withdrawals (2,525,000) (2,343,237) 
Gains on disposal of investments, net 1,402,216 1,424,780 
Investment management fees paid 193 ,234) {92.545} 

29,171,551 30,491,103 

Fair value re-measurement 11 1.871 (889,793) 

$ 2912831422 $ 291601,310 

The annual weighted average rale of relurn for 201 7 was 8.13% (2016 - 4.69%). 

Investments are used as security for certain finance facilities as described In note 6. 

5. Property and equipment: 

20 17 2016 

Accumulated Net book Net book 
Cost amortization value value 

Furniture and fixtures $ 39,044 $ 20,479 $ 18,565 $ 9,509 
Computer hardware 37,888 24,276 13,610 9,494 
Computer software 11,253 8,587 2,668 425 
Leasehold improvements 15,488 15,488 

S 103,671 $ 68,830 $ 341841 $ 19,428 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Noles to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2017 

6. Commitments and contingencies: 

The Trust has issued letters of credit through its financlal lnslitulion to provide guarantees of up 
to $6,000,000, secured by investments. The Trust has issued letters of cred it of $500,000 (2016 
- $nU) at March 31,2017. 

As of March 31, 2017, the Trust has committed funding of approximately $87.500 (2016 -
$275,000) in grants. 

The Trust has Indemnified Heritage Credit Union (<<Heritage") in the amount of $1,113,319 
(2016 - $1.306,635) in an agreement whereby Heritage paid oul the Trust's amount owed on a 
development initiative loan. The indemnity was provided to Herilage against potential losses 
Incurred on the loan. No amount has been recognized In the financial statements for this 
indemnification. 

The Trusfs total commitments, under operating leases for premises, exclusive of occupancy 
costs, are as follows: 

2018 $ 72,940 
2019 49,584 
2020 49,584 
2021 49,584 

$ 221 ,692 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Noles to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31 , 2017 

7. Financial risks and concentration of risk: 

The Trust manages Its Investment portfOlio to earn Investment income and invests according to 
a policy approved by the Board. The Trust is not invoNed in any hedging relationships through 
its operations and does nol hold or use any derivative financial instruments for trading 
purposes. 

Concentration of risk: 

(a) Credit risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk thai developmenl lnlt1aUve counterp'a,rtles may default on their 
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss. Management mitlgates this risk by 
limiting exposure to each counlerparty by dollar amount and industry sector, by 
maintaIning a balanced portfolio and by ensuring thai proper due dlligence Is performed 
before funding Is committed. The Trust assesses on a continuous basis, development 
initiatives and provides for any amounts that are not collectible in the provision for losses. 

(b) Market risk 

Market risk Is the risk that the fair value or expected future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market prices. Market risk comprises three 
types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk, and other price risks. 

(i) Currency risk 

Currency risk Is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Trust is exposed to this risk on its 
investments In U.S. and other international equities quoted in an active market. At 
year end, the Trust has $9,147.270 (2016 ~ $8,916,707) in U.S. and other 
international equities. 

(ii) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Trust is exposed to interest rate risk 
with respect to its investment in bonds. 

(iii) Other price risk 

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial 
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in mar1<et prices (other than those arising 
from Interest or rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual financial Instrument or jts issuer, or factors affecting 
all similar financial instruments traded In the market. The Trust is mainly exposed to 
other price risk through its investments in equities. 
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SOUTHERN INTERIOR DEVELOPMENT INITIATIVE TRUST 
Noles to Financial Statements (continued) 

Year ended March 31, 2017 

8. Comparative Information: 

The financial statements have been reclassified, where applicable, to conform to the 
presentation used in the current year. 

11 

SOU TUERN INT ERIOR OEVELOPMEIlT IN I TI AT IVE T IlUS T ANNU AL REP OR T 2017 

75 



Vel'non, B.C . V1T gAl 



From: Jason Heer [jason.heer@bgcbigs.ca] 
Sent: August 1, 2017 4:04 PM 
To: Nancy Cooper 
Subject: Paid Parking Transaction Issue 

Good Afternoon Mayor Cooper, 

Trust this email finds you well. My name is Jason Heer, a resident of Alberta and regular camper in the 

Salmon Arm area for many years. 

My children and I have been vacationing in your great city for the last four years and enjoy our time 

every year. Last week my family was in town camping in the area and on Thursday July 27'h rented a 

boat for the morning down at the Warf from Sea Dog Rentals. On that particular morning I parked in the 

lot near the Warf and used machine #1 to pay for our ticket. My son, 14, wanted to be responsible and 

help out Dad before our day started. He went over to the machine and used $20 to pay for paying and 

was expecting change. Upon his return to the car he only had a ticket in hand and no change. 

The goal was to park for the morning and knew we should have only been charged $4 for the day not 

$20 for S days. While I took the time to look at the machine, noticed it said, "no change from this 

machine". As a regular visitor to the city I found this experience very frustrating as I was not expecting to 

be out $20. 

I would strongly recommend that the City of Salmon Arm consider putting in new machines that allows 

individuals to pay with cash or credit or consider a machine that provides change. When I went to City 

Hall to express my frustration and hope to receive $16 back, I was told that it was not possible or prove 

this took place. 

While this situation is minor when compared to other issues, I understand it has become a source of 

frustration for many individuals using that particular parking lot. I hope that this compliant does not go 

unheard and that you and your team strongly review this process within your city. 

I look forward to hearing about a new solution with the parking in your fine city. 

Thank you for your time. 

Sincerely, 

Jason Heer 

Club Coordinator - West Club 

Boys & Girls Clubs Big Brothers Big Sisters 

16030 104 Ave, Edmonton, AB 

780.952.7621 (Cell) 1780.822.2556 
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